
 
 

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON ELECTRONIC MEETING 
THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 16TH, 2023 - 5:00 P.M. 
Council meetings are recorded and will be available on the Township 

website under Quick Links – Council Agendas and Minutes within 5 

business days of the Council meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82095762772?pwd=WEhXRytQcW9aaC84Mkt3

UTBSM1p1UT09  
 

Meeting ID: 820 9576 2772 
Passcode: 195930 

One tap mobile 
+17789072071,,82095762772#,,,,*195930# Canada 
+17806660144,,82095762772#,,,,*195930# Canada 

 

Dial by your location 
+1 778 907 2071 Canada 
+1 780 666 0144 Canada 
+1 204 272 7920 Canada 
+1 438 809 7799 Canada 
+1 587 328 1099 Canada 
+1 647 374 4685 Canada 
+1 647 558 0588 Canada 

Meeting ID: 820 9576 2772 
Passcode: 195930 

 

AGENDA  
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 
 We will begin the meeting by sharing the Land Acknowledgement Statement: 

We would like to begin by acknowledging that Melancthon Township recognizes 

the ancestral lands and treaty territories of the Tionontati (Petun/Wyandot(te)), 

Haudenosaunee (Six Nations), and Anishinaabe Peoples.  The Township of 

Melancthon resides within the lands named under the Haldimand Deed of 1784 

and the Lake Simcoe-Nottawasaga Treaty (Treaty 18). 

These territories upon which we live and learn, are steeped in rich Indigenous 

history and traditions.  It is with this statement that we declare to honour and 

respect the past and present connection of Indigenous peoples with this land, its 

waterways and resources. 

3. Announcements 
 
4. Additions/Deletions/Approval of Agenda  
 
5. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest and the General Nature Thereof 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82095762772?pwd=WEhXRytQcW9aaC84Mkt3UTBSM1p1UT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82095762772?pwd=WEhXRytQcW9aaC84Mkt3UTBSM1p1UT09


       
6. Approval of Draft Minutes – February 2, 2023 
 
7. Business Arising from Minutes 
  
8. Point of Privilege or Personal Privilege 
 
9. Public Question Period (Please visit our website under Agendas and Minutes 

for information on Public Question Period) 
 

10. Public Works 
1. Motion to return the tender deposit cheque to Flesherton Concrete 

Products Inc., Re:  2022 Gravel Tender 
2. Other 

 
11. Planning 

1. Applications to Permit 
2. Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 2023 Plan Review of Bill 23 
3. Report from Silva Yousif, Senior Planner Regarding Dufferin County MCR – 

Phase II OPA – Schedule B, C and E 
4. Comments from Chris Jones, Municipal Planning Services regarding 

County of Dufferin Ag. Lands Mapping 
5. Other 

 
12. Climate Change Initiatives 
  
13. Police Services Board 
 
14. County Council Update 
 
15. Correspondence 
 
 Board, Committee & Working Group Recommendations 
 1. Heritage Advisory Committee Recommendations from February 7, 2023 

Meeting  
 
 Board, Committee & Working Group Minutes 
 1. Roads Sub-Committee – January 17, 2023 
 2. Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board – December 20, 2022 
 3. Southgate Recreation Advisory Committee – February 2, 2023 
 4. Heritage Advisory Committee – October 19, 2022 
  

Items for Information Purposes 
1. Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority Media Release – Gail Little to 

lead NVCA Board of Directors in 2023 
2.  Memorandum from Bernie Derible, Deputy Minister and Commissioner of 

Emergency Management and Treasury Board Secretariat regarding 
Ontario’s Provincial Emergency Management Strategy and Action Plan 
(PEMSAP) 

3. Township of Mulmur – Motion to support the concept of a Universal 
Telecommunications System in Dufferin County 

4. Letter from Glen McNeil, Warden of Huron County – Call to Action: Review 
of the Cannabis Act 

5. Township of Amaranth – Motion to Support the Resolution from the 
Township of Puslinch Nominating John Sepulis to the Source Protection 
Committee for 2022-2026 term 

6. 2022 Municipal Partnerships Report from MPAC 
    
  



Items for Council Action 
1. Shelburne and District Fire Board of Management 2023 Operating and 

Capital Budget 
2.  Mulmur Melancthon Fire Department 2023 Operating and Capital Budget 
3. North Dufferin Community Centre Board of Management Draft 2023 

Operating and Capital Budget   
 
16. General Business 

1. Notice of Intent to Pass By-law 
1. By-law to adopt an Emergency Management Program and 

Emergency Response Plan and to meet other Requirements under 
the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act 

2. By-law to Authorize the Execution of Consent Agreement Between 
2577791 Ontario Inc and the Corporation of the Township of 
Melancthon 

3. By-law to amend By-law 58-2022 to appoint a Municipal Services 
Board for the Horning’s Mills Community Hall  

4. By-law to amend By-law 56-2022 to appoint a Board of 
Management for the Corbetton Community Park 

5. By-law to establish Mandatory Pre-Application Consultation 
Requirements in Respect of Development Applications 

2. New/Other Business/Additions 
1. Report from Denise B. Holmes, CAO/Clerk – Municipal 

Telecommunications Report 
2. Proclamation for Heritage Week in Melancthon Township – 

February 20-26, 2023 
3. Other/Addition(s) 

3. Unfinished Business 
1. Melancthon Recreation Task Force Report 
2. Draft 2023 Operating and Capital Budget  
3. International Plowing Match Funding Request 

     
17. Delegations 
 1. 5:30 p.m. – Michele Fisher, Dufferin Community Foundation – 
  Presentation to Council about the Importance of the Charitable and Not-

for-Profit Sector in Dufferin County and regarding Non-profit Appreciation 
Week in Ontario February 13-19, 2023   

  
18. Closed Session 
 1. Item for Discussion: 
  1. Litigation or Potential Litigation, including matters before 

administrative tribunal, affecting the local board (239)(2)(e) – 
McGill and Melancthon Township – Update to Council  

 2. Approval of Draft Minutes – February 2, 2023 
 3. Business Arising from Minutes 
 4. Rise Without Report from Closed Session  
 
19. Third Reading of By-laws  
 
20. Notice of Motion 
 
21. Confirmation By-law 
 
22. Adjournment and Date of Next Meeting – Thursday, March 2nd, 2023 – 5:00 

p.m. 
 



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023PLAN #11.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023PLAN #11.2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text













  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

1 
 

Date: February 16, 2022 

To: Mayor White and Members of Council 

From: Silva Yousif – Senior Planner 

Subject:  Dufferin County MCR – Phase II OPA – Schedule B, C, and E  

 

Recommendation: 

That the Staff Report of Silva Yousif, Senior Planner be received;  

And that Staff be directed to advise the County MCR Team that the draft maps are 

satisfactory to the Council of the Township of Melancthon and can be submitted for 

Phase II of the OPA. 

Background: 

The County is undertaking the Municipal Comprehensive Review (“MCR”) process, to 

update its Official Plan. Throughout this process, the Township was asked to provide 

feedback on proposed changes for the Agricultural System Mapping (Schedule C). The 

Township planning consultant Chris Jones (at that time) carried on the review following 

the direction provided by the County MCR team that: Lands can only be removed from 

Prime Agricultural Areas if they are within the OMAFRA Candidate Areas AND they meet 

the criteria from the OMAFRA implementation guidelines. 
 

Chris Jones provided updates in his April 30, 2021 memo to Council recommending the 
updates to Prime Agricultural Areas based on the OMAFRA refinement criteria.  
 
The County is preparing to submit Phase II OPA – Schedules and Maps – to the 
province for review early spring 2023 following the MCR Open House and Public 
Information Center that was held January 21, 20231.  

 
1 County Council meeting of January 12, 2023 motion “ .. AND THAT staff be directed to circulate any changes to 
local municipalities for review, following receiving feedback and conducting the public open house, with comments 
to be returned to the County prior to the March 9, 2023 County Council meeting, before submitting the draft MCR 
Phase II OPA - Schedule B, C, and E Changes and related draft OPA to the Province for review.” 

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023PLAN #11.3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

2 
 

Comments and Considerations: 

In recent discussion with Chris Jones and the County MCR team it was noted by Mr. 

Jones that although the exercise was to strictly use the OMAFRA refinement criteria for 

candidate lands which was the basis of the Melancthon draft mapping analysis and 

recommendations, other municipalities have maintained (or are proposing to maintain) 

their current Rural/ Agricultural split, with no refinement criteria that support it, even if 

these prior designations were the product of a historic LEAR study, the refinement 

criteria require the study to have been undertaken by an upper-tier or single-tier 

municipality. 

It was also noted by the County MCR team that the OMAFRA implementation guidelines 

don’t allow for the removal of Prime Agricultural Areas due to residential land uses. And 

that the existing land uses will not be affected by the Prime Agricultural designation. 

At the meeting of Melancthon Council held on June 3, 2021, the draft Schedules based 

on the memo from April 30, 2021 - provided by Chris Jones - were supported by a 

motion from Council. The following motion was introduced and passed.  

Moved by Mercer, Seconded by McLean 

Be it resolved that: “that the Report of Chris Jones, Township Planning 

Consultant, dated April 30, 2021 regarding Assessment of Candidate 

Agricultural Lands - Growth Plan be received; and that the County of Dufferin 

be advised that two of the three candidate areas identified in the Provincial 

Agricultural System map are currently designated as Rural in the Township’s 

Official Plan approved in 2015 and as such should remain in the Rural 

designation; and that the County of Dufferin be further requested to refine 

the Provincial Agricultural System Mapping as it applies the candidate area in 

Horning’s Mills and the area along the 8th Line NE in the matter illustrated in 

Appendices 2 and 3 to his Report to reflect the Township‘s current Official 

Plan and in accordance with Criteria 2 and 7 of the Agricultural System 

implementation criteria.” Carried. 

Given that the previous request was endorsed by Melancthon Council, no additional 

changes should be made without the support of Council. 

Financial Impact: 

None at this time. 



  The Corporation of THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON  

  157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

  

 

 

3 
 

Summary/ Options: 

 
Council may: 
 

1. Take no further action. 
2. Receive this Report for information and that Council Direct Staff to take 

actions as per the Staff Report of Silva Yousif, Senior Planner 
Recommendation. 

3. Direct Staff in another manner Council deems appropriate. 

Conclusion: 

Option #2 is recommended. 
 
Respectfully  

Prepared By Submitted By 

Silva Yousif Denise B. Holmes 

Sr. Planner  CAO/Clerk 

      
Attachments: (Click on link to access maps) 

- Schedule B - Settlement Areas Proposed Final Draft (MCR 2023) Jan 21, 2023 
- Schedule C - Prime Agricultural Areas and Rural Lands (MCR Jan 19 2023) 
- Schedule E -Natural Heritage Features Proposed Final Draft (MCR Jan 19 2023) 
- Schedule E1 -Natural Heritage Features Proposed Final Draft (Jan 21, 2023) - 

PDF 

https://www.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=ccf9784e6f9f4910b70ef07921e66702&extent=-8999193.8125%2C5434839.81%2C-8864664.6427%2C5507760.735%2C102100
https://www.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=be4c047c2fc64ac2b3af5f9a185fa7a8&extent=-8981212.9628%2C5431428.5432%2C-8846683.793%2C5504349.4682%2C102100
https://www.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=b586463231524b62b4bccbbfb6a632f0&extent=-8986002.0662%2C5435591.4439%2C-8863091.3248%2C5506066.384%2C102100
https://dufferincounty.maps.arcgis.com/apps/mapviewer/index.html?layers=8c116927a5f940b3948facf3c79da1fa


C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 1
2

4

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

O
AD

 9

COUNTY ROAD 2

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 11

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 1
2

COUNTY ROAD 21

COUNTY ROAD 17

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 2
5

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 1
9

HIGHWAY 10/89

HIGHW
AY

10

HIGHWAY 89

Hornings
Mills

Riverview

Corbetton

Primrose

Honeywood

Terra Nova

Melancthon

Mulmu

Shelburne

Draft Schedule E1
Natural Heritage

System

¯

Oak Ridges Moraine Conservation Plan Area (S. 2.2)

Countryside Area

Natural Core Area

Natural Linkage Area

Niagara Escarpment Plan Area (S. 2.3)

Escarpment Natural Area 

Escarpment Protection Area 

Greenbelt Plan Protected Countryside Area (S. 4.2.1)

Greenbelt Natural Heritage System

County Preliminary Natural Heritage System (S.5.2)

Date: 2023 01 18

Municipal Boundaries

Urban Settlement Area

Community Settlement Area

Provincial Highway

County Road

0 105
Kilometres



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023PLAN #11.4

kchessell
Typewritten Text



1

2

10

3

13

148

4

7

12

6

5

11
9

Total Land Area (ha)
% of land in EP 
(green or hatch)

% of land outside of 
EP Total parcels Average parcel size (ha)

1 995 50.4% 49.60% 45 22.11
2 847 65.3% 34.70% 24 35.29
3 560 69.6% 30.40% 38 14.74
4 350 78.9% 21.10% 19 18.42
5 175 34.3% 65.70% 6 29.17
6 186 43.5% 56.50% 6 31.00
7 278 59.4% 40.60% 24 11.58
8 367 57.8% 42.20% 16 22.94
9 97 10.3% 89.70% 19 5.11

10 1161 57.7% 42.30% 74 15.69
11 233 45.9% 54.10% 15 15.53
12 491 61.9% 38.10% 42 11.69
13 860 62.6% 37.40% 78 11.03
14 751 57.4% 42.60% 53 14.17

Melancthon Rural Designation
Legend

Subject Areas
Rural
Environmental Protection

¯

0 1 2 3 4 5
km



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023BD COMM REC #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023BD COMM MINS #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text







kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023BD COMM MINS #2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text









kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023BD COMM MINS #3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text







kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023BD COMM MINS #4

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text





kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023INFO #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text





Page 1 of 2 

 

Treasury Board Secretariat 
 
Emergency Management Ontario  
 
25 Morton Shulman Avenue 
Toronto ON  M3M 0B1 
Tel: 647-329-1200 

Secrétariat du Conseil du Trésor 
 
Gestion des situations d'urgence Ontario 
 
25, rue Morton Shulman 
Toronto (Ontario) M3M 0B1 
Tél.: 647-329-1200 

 

 

 
 

DATE :                                    February 3, 2023 
  
MEMORANDUM TO:             Municipal Chief Administrative Officers  
 
FROM:                               Bernie Derible  

Deputy Minister and Commissioner of Emergency 
Management  
Treasury Board Secretariat 

 
SUBJECT:                            Ontario’s Provincial Emergency Management Strategy 

and Action Plan (PEMSAP)  
 

 
I am pleased to share Ontario’s Provincial Emergency Management Strategy and Action 

Plan, a roadmap for a whole-of-Ontario approach to keep the people of Ontario safe, 

practiced and prepared. The plan sets a foundation for emergency management in 

Ontario, informed by emergency events across the province, and placing the most 

vulnerable at the centre of planning, preparedness and mitigation. The action-oriented 

plan includes goals and actions designed to keep Ontario in a state of constant readiness 

and preparedness – both now and in the future.  

 

Municipalities play a critical role in addressing emergencies at the local level and are the 

first line of emergency preparedness, planning, mitigation, response and recovery. The 

plan reinforces Emergency Management Ontario’s continued partnership with 

municipalities to achieve our collective vision of a safe, practiced and prepared Ontario.  

 

I would like to express my appreciation and thanks for municipal insights and partnership 

which informed the development of the plan. 

 

Three goals guide Ontario’s plan and will support municipalities to maintain a state of 

constant readiness and preparedness: 

1. One Window for all Ontarians through Emergency Management Ontario to 

proactively coordinate and facilitate across emergency management partners.  

 

http://www.ontario.ca/safeandprepared
http://www.ontario.ca/safeandprepared
https://www.ontario.ca/page/emergency-management
kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023INFO #2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



Page 2 of 2 

 

2. Proactive Planning and Monitoring that is grounded in data, analytics and 

knowledge.  

 

3. Practiced and Prepared Emergency Response through strengthened local 

capabilities, emergency management training and public education.  

The plan will be further strengthened through ongoing engagement with municipalities 

to ensure that our province is in a state of constant readiness and preparedness.  

 

If you have any questions regarding the Provincial Emergency Management Strategy 

and Action Plan, please contact your local field officer. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

 

Bernie Derible  

Deputy Minister and Commissioner of Emergency Management  
Treasury Board Secretariat 
 

cc: Heather Levecque, Assistant Deputy Minister, Emergency Management Strategy, 

Monitoring and Intelligence Division, Emergency Management Ontario, Treasury Board 

Secretariat  

Teepu Khawja, Assistant Deputy Minister, Emergency Management Operations and 

Response Division, Emergency Management Ontario, Treasury Board Secretariat 

Lisa Priest, Assistant Deputy Minister, Emergency Management Preparedness, 

Programs and Planning Division, Emergency Management Ontario, Treasury Board 

Secretariat 

Michelle Astill, Director, Emergency Management Strategy, Monitoring and Intelligence, 

Emergency Management Ontario, Treasury Board Secretariat   



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023INFO #3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



OFFICE OF THE WARDEN 
Corporation of the County of Huron 
1 Courthouse Square 
Goderich, Ontario N7A 1M2 
www.HuronCounty.ca 
Phone: 519.524.8394 
Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 

 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
February 1, 2023 

Sent via email. 

 

Re: Call to Action: Review of the Cannabis Act 

Please note that on February 1, 2023 Huron County Council passed the following 
motion: 

Moved by:  Councillor G. Finch and Seconded by:  Councillor M. Anderson 
THAT: 
The Council of the County of Huron approve the report by CAO Meighan Wark dated 
February 1, 2023 titled Report to Council: Cannabis Act Information as presented; 
AND FURTHER THAT: 
The Council of the County of Huron advocate for improvements to the Cannabis Act 
and current legislative framework for cannabis in Canada by sending the report titled 
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information, including the correspondence found in 
the appendices, to the Western Ontario Warden’s Caucus (WOWC) for discussion and 
consideration; 
AND FURTHER THAT: 
The Council of the County of Huron approve forwarding Call to Action Letters to the 
following for support: 

• Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM) 
• All Municipalities in Ontario 
• Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA) 
• Premier of Ontario 
• Provincial Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks 
• Provincial Minister of Agriculture 
• Provincial Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing 
• Member of Parliament 
• Federal Minister of Agriculture and Agri-Food 
• Federal Minister of Health 

CARRIED 
 
The County of Huron calls for a review and amendments to the Cannabis Act and the 
current legislative framework for cannabis in Canada. 
 

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023INFO #4

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



  

To be clear, the County of Huron is not against or opposed to cannabis and we 
appreciate the role that both the federal and provincial governments provide in 
assisting municipalities.  However, when new legislation is implemented, it is often at 
the municipal level that the impacts of change can be observed, and notations can be 
made for areas of improvement. It is vital that municipal governments pay attention 
and provide information and recommendations to higher levels of government so 
that continual improvements can be made over time.    
 
It is in this spirit that we provide the following recommendation: 
 
As a municipal government for one of Canada’s most agriculturally productive regions 
and a popular tourism destination, we have been in the position to observe the last 
several years of legal cannabis production under the Cannabis Act as managed by 
Health Canada. 

Under the current legislative and regulatory framework, we have observed, and 
continue to observe, serious odour impacts on local communities and residents from 
cannabis production facilities; including concerns from local medical practitioners 
about these impacts. Most often, these odour impacts arise from properties used for 
‘The Production of Cannabis for Own Medical Purposes by a Designated Person’.  

In our local municipal experience, these facilities are often established without 
complying with local municipal zoning and nuisance by-laws, often contain hundreds 
of cannabis plants for each of the four assigned individuals, and usually do not include 
adequate odour controls to manage impacts on surrounding homes, public facilities, 
and the community at large. 
 
To help manage public impacts of cannabis production facilities, we request that all 
production facilities, including facilities used by a designated person to produce 
cannabis for an individual’s medical purposes, to require confirmation from the local 
municipality that the facility/site selected complies with all local municipal by-laws 
and regulations prior to an application being approved by Health Canada. We also 
request that Health Canada implement a system of minimum setbacks between 
cannabis production facilities and sensitive odour receptors, including homes and 
public facilities.  

As an agricultural community, we have had extensive experience with the Ontario 
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs' Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) 
Formula, an approach which has been used to successfully manage land use conflicts 
resulting from odour between livestock facilities and sensitive receptors for almost 
50 years. We believe a system based on MDS would be appropriate to manage the 



  

impacts of Health Canada’s approved cannabis facilities, including both licensed 
commercial producers and designated growers for individuals. 

In conclusion, we strongly recommend further notice and enhanced consultation with 
municipal governments when drafting and implementing legislation and regulations 
related to cannabis production, as there is a direct impact on local municipal 
operations, local residents, and in some cases, serious issues of non-compliance with 
local municipal by-laws. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Glen McNeil   
Warden, Huron County 
On behalf of Huron County Council 
 



1
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

Report for Council: 
Cannabis Act Information
Prepared: January 2023



2
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

Contents

3 Background

3 Cannabis Act: Information For Municipalities 
3  1. Licensed Producers
4  2. Personal and Designated Production 

5 Community Expressed Concerns

5 Impact to the Municipality

5	 Advocacy	Efforts	to	Date

6 Recommendations for Further Advocacy
6  Call to Action Letter
6  Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information (this report)

6 Further Resources
6  The Cannabis Act: The Facts
6  The Cannabis Act
6  Cannabis Information for Municipalities
6  Ontario: Cannabis Control Act

7 Correspondence Received by Council
7  Correspondence to Council, January 2023: Bonnie Shackelton

7 Appendix A

7 Appendix B



3
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

Background

On January 18, 2023, Huron County Council passed the following motion:

THAT:
The Council of the County of Huron request staff to prepare a report for Council on 
the Federal Cannabis Legislation Review with recommendations on options for Huron 
County to address their concerns with this legislation.

Cannabis Act: Information For Municipalities 

According to The Government of Canada’s Information for Municipalities - Medical Use 
of Cannabis there are two approved ways medical cannabis can be grown:  Licensed 
Producers and Personal and Designate Production

1. Licensed Producers

Licensed producers are individuals or companies licensed by Health Canada to 
produce and sell cannabis for medical purposes. Licensed producers must meet 
stringent health and safety security requirements before producing and selling 
cannabis. 

When applying to be a licensed producer under the Access to Cannabis for Medical 
Purposes Regulations (ACMPR), or when applying to amend a licence, an applicant 
must notify:

• The municipality
• Local fire officials
• Local law enforcement

Licensed producers must also notify these local authorities, within 30 days, after 
the issuance of a licence or the renewal, amendment, suspension, reinstatement, or 
revocation of their licence. These notification requirements are intended to provide 
local authorities with information about activities with cannabis conducted in their 
jurisdiction to allow them to take appropriate measures, as applicable.

Licensed producers are expected to obey all relevant federal, provincial and municipal 
laws and by-laws, including municipal zoning by-laws.

https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-medication/cannabis/information-municipalities.html


4
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

2.	Personal	and	Designated	Production	

If a person wants to produce a limited amount of cannabis for his/her own medical 
purposes, he/she needs to register with Health Canada. He/she can also choose to 
designate another person to produce a limited amount of cannabis for him/her. A 
person can produce a limited number of marijuana plants under a maximum of two 
registrations (for one other person and him/herself, or two other people). Marijuana 
plants may be produced under a maximum of four registrations at one address.

A registered or designated person is permitted to produce marijuana plants indoors 
and/or outdoors, but not both at the same time. If a person wishes to produce 
marijuana plants outdoors, the boundary of the land on which the production site is 
located cannot have any points in common with the boundary of the land on which a 
school, public playground, day care facility or other public place frequented mainly by 
persons under 18 years of age.

The number of plants a person can grow is determined by the daily amount 
recommended by their health care practitioner and a set of formulas in the 
regulations. 

Health Canada also recommends that registered and designated persons be discreet 
with their production. 

Individuals who are registered with Health Canada to produce a limited amount 
of cannabis for medical purposes are expected to obey all federal, provincial and 
municipal laws and by-laws.



5
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

Community Expressed Concerns

Recently, some concerns regarding the Cannabis Act and local growing practices have 
been expressed by community members. Some of the topics of concern expressed 
have included:
• Excessive noise produced by ventilation units
• Serious odour impacts from production
• Health concerns from neighbouring property owners
• Questions regarding zoning requirements for Cannabis operations, particularly in 

regards to areas zoned residential
• The current lack of a Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) between licensed 

facilities/designate growers, and homes, public facilities
 

Impact to the Municipality

Community concerns regarding the Cannabis Act have an impact on the municipality. 
These impacts include the costs associated with Council and staff time and legal fees.  
There is also a potential for community disruption pertaining to licenses issued under 
the Federal Medical Cannabis Registration process.

It is important to note that the municipality’s concerns expressed in this report are 
not against or opposed to cannabis. The County of Huron appreciates the role that 
both the federal and provincial governments provide in assisting municipalities.  
However, when new legislation is implemented, it is often at the municipal level 
that the impacts of change can be observed and notations can be made for areas 
of improvement. It is vital that municipal governments pay attention and provide 
information and recommendations to other levels of government so that continual 
improvements can be made over time. 

Advocacy Efforts to Date

On October 5, 2022 a letter was sent to the Cannabis Act Legislative Review 
Secretariat of Health Canada. The letter offered requested feedback on the Cannabis 
Act and a recommendation for a Minimum Distance Separation to protect residential 
areas.

See Appendix A.



6
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

Recommendations for Further Advocacy

Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information (this report)

Further advocacy could be accomplished by sending this report, including the 
correspondence found in the appendices, to the Western Ontario Warden’s Caucus 
(WOWC) for discussion and consideration.  

A Call to Action Letter could be sent on behalf of WOWC, and all WOWC member 
municipalities could be invited to send similar letters to the agencies and individuals 
outlined below.

Call to Action Letter

A sample Call to Action Letter for Huron County can be found in Appendix B.  Once 
approved by Council, letters could be sent to:

  Federation of Canadian Municipalities (FCM)
  All Municipalities in Ontario
  Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs (OMAFRA)
  Premier of Ontario: Doug Ford
  Provincial Minister of the Environment, Conservation and Parks: David Piccini
  Provincial Minister of Agriculture: Lisa Thompson 
  Provincial Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing: Steve Clark
  Member of Parliament: Ben Lobb
  Federal Minister of Agriculture and Agri-Food: Marie-Claude Bibeau
  Federal Minister of Health: Jean-Yes Duclos



7
Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information
January 2023

Further Resources

The Cannabis Act: The Facts
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/news/2018/06/backgrounder-the-cannabis-
act-the-facts.html

The Cannabis Act
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2018_16/FullText.
html#:~:text=The%20objectives%20of%20the%20Act,operating%20outside%20
the%20legal%20framework

Cannabis Information for Municipalities
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-medication/cannabis/
information-municipalities.html

Ontario: Cannabis Control Act
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/17c26

Correspondence Received by Council

Correspondence to Council, January 2023: Bonnie Shackelton
https://agendas.huroncounty.ca/agendapublic/AttachmentViewer.
ashx?AttachmentID=7134&ItemID=5394

Appendix A

Copy of the letter sent to the Cannabis Act Legislative Review Secretariat of Health 
Canada on October 5, 2022

Appendix B

Sample Call to Action Letter

https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/news/2018/06/backgrounder-the-cannabis-act-the-facts.html
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/news/2018/06/backgrounder-the-cannabis-act-the-facts.html
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2018_16/FullText.html#:~:text=The%20objectives%20
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2018_16/FullText.html#:~:text=The%20objectives%20
https://laws-lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/annualstatutes/2018_16/FullText.html#:~:text=The%20objectives%20
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-medication/cannabis/information-municipalities
https://www.canada.ca/en/health-canada/services/drugs-medication/cannabis/information-municipalities
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/17c26 
https://agendas.huroncounty.ca/agendapublic/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=7134&ItemID=5394
https://agendas.huroncounty.ca/agendapublic/AttachmentViewer.ashx?AttachmentID=7134&ItemID=5394


OFFICE OF THE WARDEN 
Corporation of the County of Huron 
1 Courthouse Square 
Goderich, Ontario N7A 1M2 
www.HuronCounty.ca 
Phone: 519.524.8394 
Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
October, 5, 2022 

To: Cannabis Act Legislative Review Secretariat 
Health Canada 
Address locator 0302I 
Ottawa, Ontario 
K1A 0K9 

On October 5, 2022, Huron County Council passed the following motion: 

THAT: 
The Council of the County of Huron send correspondence to Health Canada 
requesting consultation when implementing legislation on cannabis regulation as 
there is a direct impact on municipal operations and sometimes non compliancy to 
municipal by-laws; 

AND FURTHER THAT: 
The Council of the County of Huron recommends the inclusion of a system of 
Minimum Distance Separation to protect residential areas; 

AND FURTHER THAT: 
This correspondence be circulated to Huron County local municipalities for support. 

 

Thank you for requesting feedback on the Cannabis Act and the current legislative 
framework for cannabis in Canada. As a municipal government for one of Canada’s 
most agriculturally productive regions, and a popular tourism destination, we have 
been in the position to observe areas for improvement during the last several years of 
legal cannabis production under the Cannabis Act as managed by Health Canada. 

Under the current legislative and regulatory framework, we have observed, and 
continue to observe, serious odour impacts on local communities and residents from 
cannabis production facilities; including concerns from local medical practitioners 
about these impacts. Most often, these odour impacts arise from properties used for 
‘The Production of Cannabis for Own Medical Purposes by a Designated Person’.  

In our local municipal experience, these facilities are often established without 
complying with local municipal zoning and nuisance by-laws, often contain hundreds 



  

of cannabis plants for each of the four assigned individuals, and usually do not include 
adequate odour controls to manage impacts on surrounding homes, public facilities, 
and the community at large. 
 
To help manage public impacts of cannabis production facilities, we request that all 
production facilities, including facilities used by a designated person to produce 
cannabis for an individual’s medical purposes, require confirmation from the local 
municipality that the facility/site selected complies with all local municipal by-laws 
and regulations prior to an application being approved by Health Canada. We also 
request that Health Canada implement a system of minimum setbacks between 
cannabis production facilities and sensitive odour receptors, including homes and 
public facilities.  

As an agricultural community we have had extensive experience with the Ontario 
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) 
Formula, an approach which has been used to successfully manage land use conflicts 
resulting from odour between livestock facilities and sensitive receptors for almost 
fifty years. We believe a system based on MDS would be appropriate to manage the 
impacts of Health Canada’s approved cannabis facilities, including both licensed 
commercial producers and designated growers for individuals. 

In conclusion, we strongly recommend enhanced consultation with municipal 
governments and request further notice and consultation with the County of Huron 
when drafting and implementing legislation and regulations dealing with matters 
related to cannabis production, as there is a direct impact on local municipal 
operations, local residents, and in some cases serious issues of non-compliance with 
local municipal by-laws. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Glen McNeil   
Warden, Huron County 
On behalf of Huron County Council 
 



OFFICE OF THE WARDEN 
Corporation of the County of Huron 
1 Courthouse Square 
Goderich, Ontario N7A 1M2 
www.HuronCounty.ca 
Phone: 519.524.8394 
Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
{insert date} 

To: {insert recipient} 

Re: Call to Action: Review of the Cannabis Act 

On {insert date}, Huron County Council passed the following motion: 

THAT: 
{insert motion} 

AND FURTHER THAT: 
{insert motion} 

The County of Huron calls for a review and amendments to the Cannabis Act and the 
current legislative framework for cannabis in Canada. 
 
To be clear, the County of Huron is not against or opposed to cannabis and we 
appreciate the role that both the federal and provincial governments provide in 
assisting municipalities.  However, when new legislation is implemented, it is often at 
the municipal level that the impacts of change can be observed, and notations can be 
made for areas of improvement. It is vital that municipal governments pay attention 
and provide information and recommendations to higher levels of government so 
that continual improvements can be made over time.    
 
It is in this spirit that we provide the following recommendation: 
 
As a municipal government for one of Canada’s most agriculturally productive regions 
and a popular tourism destination, we have been in the position to observe the last 
several years of legal cannabis production under the Cannabis Act as managed by 
Health Canada. 

Under the current legislative and regulatory framework, we have observed, and 
continue to observe, serious odour impacts on local communities and residents from 
cannabis production facilities; including concerns from local medical practitioners 
about these impacts. Most often, these odour impacts arise from properties used for 
‘The Production of Cannabis for Own Medical Purposes by a Designated Person’.  



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

In our local municipal experience, these facilities are often established without 
complying with local municipal zoning and nuisance by-laws, often contain hundreds 
of cannabis plants for each of the four assigned individuals, and usually do not include 
adequate odour controls to manage impacts on surrounding homes, public facilities, 
and the community at large. 
 
To help manage public impacts of cannabis production facilities, we request that all 
production facilities, including facilities used by a designated person to produce 
cannabis for an individual’s medical purposes, to require confirmation from the local 
municipality that the facility/site selected complies with all local municipal by-laws 
and regulations prior to an application being approved by Health Canada. We also 
request that Health Canada implement a system of minimum setbacks between 
cannabis production facilities and sensitive odour receptors, including homes and 
public facilities.  

As an agricultural community, we have had extensive experience with the Ontario 
Ministry of Agriculture, Food and Rural Affairs' Minimum Distance Separation (MDS) 
Formula, an approach which has been used to successfully manage land use conflicts 
resulting from odour between livestock facilities and sensitive receptors for almost 
50 years. We believe a system based on MDS would be appropriate to manage the 
impacts of Health Canada’s approved cannabis facilities, including both licensed 
commercial producers and designated growers for individuals. 

In conclusion, we strongly recommend further notice and enhanced consultation with 
municipal governments when drafting and implementing legislation and regulations 
related to cannabis production, as there is a direct impact on local municipal 
operations, local residents, and in some cases, serious issues of non-compliance with 
local municipal by-laws. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Glen McNeil   
Warden, Huron County 
On behalf of Huron County Council 
 



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023INFO #5

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



2022 Municipal 
Partnerships Report

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023INFO #6

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



2  | 2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC



MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  3

Contents
2022: Partnering Today for a New Tomorrow 4

Who We Are 5

Capturing New Assessment 6

Connecting With Partners 7

Property Insights 8

Innovative Solutions 10

Delivering the 2022 Enumeration 11

Prioritizing Property Owners 12

New Products and Services 13

Looking Ahead 14

Connect With Us 15



4  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC

2022: Partnering Today 
for a New Tomorrow
After two challenging years, we know a lot has changed. 
Still one thing remains constant - MPAC’s commitment, as 
Ontario’s property market experts, to provide property 
values, insights and services that municipalities and property 
owners can rely on.

Our 2021-2025 Strategic Plan prioritizes elevating the 
property owner and municipal experience. With this plan 
as our guide, we will demonstrate our support for property 
owners and our commitment to our municipal partners to 
enhance communities across Ontario.  

“On behalf of MPAC, I’d like to congratulate all the 
new and re-elected officials following the recent 
municipal elections and thank you for your service. We 
look forward to the partnerships our MPAC team will 
continue to build with you and your municipal staff to 
support your community and local decision-making.”

Alan Spacek
Chair, MPAC Board of Directors

https://www.mpac.ca/en/AboutUs/StrategicPlan


MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  5

Who We Are
We are Ontario’s property market experts. Our job is to assess 
and classify more than 5.5 million properties across Ontario worth 
a combined value of more than $3 trillion. Since our last report, 
Ontario has grown by approximately 100,000 new properties and 
we have added more than $37 billion in new assessment from 
new construction and improvements to existing properties. Every 
municipality uses our assessments to make informed decisions 
about their community, including the distribution of property taxes.

We continuously update our property data so that municipal 
tax records are accurate when local governments are making 
important tax decisions.

Our work to maintain Ontario’s property database includes:

Collecting property data in consultation with municipalities  
and property owners

Analyzing and verifying changes to property and  
property transactions

Inspecting properties in response to building permits, sales 
reviews, neighbourhood reviews and more

Monitoring sale trends in property sectors

Processing severances and consolidations

Addressing Requests for Reconsideration and appeals

Responding to vacancy and tax applications from municipalities

Tracking school support

“Our work in recent years has advanced our business 
processes and added more data than ever to ensure 
the quality and accuracy of our values. Building on 
these successes, we stand ready to deliver a predictable 
assessment base, accurate data and insights, and provide 
quality products and services that municipalities, property 
owners and other stakeholders can count on.”

Nicole McNeill
President and Chief Administrative Officer, MPAC



6  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC

Capturing New 
Assessment
Each year, MPAC updates property records to capture 
changes in properties from additions, improvements or  
new construction.

In 2022, we worked diligently to capture new assessment that 
provides additional revenue for municipalities. Throughout 
the year we assessed more than $37 billion in new 
construction, additions and renovations across Ontario.

Our ongoing collaboration with municipalities made this 
milestone possible. Together, we are modernizing and 
digitizing building permit collection and exchange to create 
efficiencies for municipalities and to help us capture new 
assessment faster, resulting in new municipal revenues up to 
two months sooner. 

“As I have recently returned to the municipal sector, I found our local 
representative and MPAC team have been extremely helpful to explain, answer 
questions and provide valuable information in a timely manner. MPAC’s 
continued support confirms they are a valuable partner for our municipality.”

Angela Millar 
Treasurer, Township of Drummond/North Elmsley



MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  7

Connecting With 
Partners
With the return of in-person conferences, MPAC had the 
pleasure of reconnecting with municipal representatives 
at events across the province – from the Northwestern 
Ontario Municipal Association (NOMA) conference 
to the Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) 
conference, to name just two. Our Municipal and 
Stakeholder Relations team attended 14 municipal 
conferences this year, in-person and virtually.

As a speaker, exhibitor and attendee at these events, we 
shared organizational updates and operational highlights, 
had the opportunity to discuss municipal priorities and 
work together on solutions.

Beyond events, our MPAC team engaged with municipal 
staff and elected officials more than 1,500 times in 2022 
and responded to 97.7% of municipal inquiries within the 
time periods outlined in our Service Level Agreement 
with municipalities.

We’re looking forward to keeping our connections strong 
as municipal councils begin their new term this fall.

“We are pleased to take part in many sector conferences and 
events, delivering updates, and receiving feedback during 
our workshops and one-to-one discussions. Your insights 
help us to enhance the municipal experience, determine how 
to best support municipal operations and consider future 
collaboration opportunities.”

Mary Dawson-Cole 
Director, Municipal and Stakeholder Relations, MPAC

https://www.mpac.ca/sites/default/files/docs/pdf/mpdf/PlainLanguageSLA.pdf
https://www.mpac.ca/sites/default/files/docs/pdf/mpdf/PlainLanguageSLA.pdf


8  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC

Property Insights
MPAC is uniquely positioned as the only organization 
with a complete data set of all building permits in Ontario 
– we process about 300,000 each year on properties of 
all types. Our understanding of this data enables us to 
identify trends in various permit categories across the 
province.

During 2022, we shared these property insights with 
municipalities and property owners. Through a targeted 
media campaign, we provided the latest information 
on the significant increase in new residential builds and 
home improvements, decrease in condo sizes, growth of 
self-storage facilities, continued demand for office space 
and more. 

To learn more, visit Our Stories-Building Permits  
on mpac.ca.

“Our relentless focus on maintaining Ontario’s property 
inventory gives us unique insight into Ontario’s 
changing property landscape. Much like the census 
informs us about population, property data can provide 
municipalities with insights on market changes and 
growth metrics that can enhance their planning and 
decision-making. We look forward to sharing more 
property data insights in 2023.”

Carmelo Lipsi
Vice-President and Chief Operating Officer, MPAC 

https://www.mpac.ca/en/News/OurStories
https://www.mpac.ca/en


MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  9

2021 Residential Home Improvement Building Permits
Total Permits
122,334       15%     

Northwest Ontario
Residential
Total Permits

1,677       12%

Southwest Ontario
Residential
Total Permits

17,859       12%

22,158       15%
Greater Golden Horseshoe
Residential
Total Permits

Northeast Ontario
Residential
Total Permits

6,887       4%

Eastern Ontario
Residential
Total Permits

21,576       1%

Central Ontario
Residential
Total Permits

15,007       19%

Greater Toronto Area
Residential
Total Permits

37,170       25%



10  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC

Innovative Solutions
Investing in technology and innovative processes continues 
to be a focus for MPAC, especially when it comes to refining 
services that impact municipal operations.

This year, we continued our work with municipalities to 
digitize their permitting process. We are currently working 
in partnership with the Association of Municipalities of 
Ontario’s (AMO) business arm, LAS, on an e-permitting 
pilot project to demonstrate the value of digital permitting 
for Ontario municipalities. 

We have created an Application Programming Interface 
(API), which allows MPAC to electronically retrieve approved 
building plans prior to construction. This expediates our 
process for providing new assessment to municipalities and 
facilitates new revenue opportunities, sooner. We’ll share 
the pilot results with municipalities when the project is 
completed in 2023. 

“The Township is excited to be part of a project that evaluates the 
benefits of digital building permitting solutions, while supporting 
adoption by municipalities that might not have taken this step on their 
own. Thanks to AMO, LAS and MPAC for supporting municipalities to help 
them confidently take a step forward in service delivery modernization.”

Chris Wray
Chief Administrative Officer, Township of Black River-Matheson

https://www.mpac.ca/en/News/OurStories/Epermittingpilotprojectmovesforward
https://www.mpac.ca/en/News/OurStories/Epermittingpilotprojectmovesforward


MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  11

Delivering the 2022 
Enumeration
MPAC worked closely with municipalities and 
association partners to promote VoterLookUp.ca 
to support the delivery of a quality preliminary list 
of electors (PLE) to every municipality and school 
board for the October 24 elections.

The campaign included print and digital content, 
targeted outreach for tenants and students, 
and toolkits with information municipalities 
could share to encourage voters to confirm their 
information on VoterLookUp.ca. With more than 
215,000 searches leading up to the elections, 
the campaign’s success was a result of the 
municipalities that helped promote and educate 
their residents about the tool.

While this is MPAC’s last delivery of province-wide 
PLEs, we will continue to provide the PLE for any 
by-elections in 2023 and are working to implement 
legislated changes that will transfer responsibility 
for enumeration products to Elections Ontario in 
January 2024.

“Our staff leveraged the resources in MPAC’s toolkit to promote 
VoterLookUp and encourage residents to confirm their 
information for our 2022 municipal election. MPAC’s off-the-shelf 
information and VoterLookUp made it easy to engage residents.”

Anne Whalen
Municipal Clerk, Township of Sables-Spanish Rivers 

https://www.mpac.ca/en/VoterlookupToolKit


12  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC

Prioritizing 
Property Owners
We know there are a lot of questions about the property 
assessment and taxation process. We are making 
enhancements to help Ontarians better understand how 
we determine assessments and how this input is used to 
calculate property taxes.

The language on our Property Assessment Notices has 
been simplified to explain why owners are receiving 
one, and we added a QR code that links directly to more 
information on mpac.ca. 

We have also increased our public education efforts. It’s 
been six years since the last province-wide assessment 
update, and we understand that property owners may 
be feeling uncertain about what’s to come. Our new 
public education campaign focuses on MPAC’s roles 
and responsibilities, how assessed values and taxes are 
calculated and the relationship between the two. 

To support our municipal partners, we shared a toolkit  
with municipalities that features ready-to-use, easily 
digestible content to help address anticipated concerns 
and misunderstandings from property owners as we 
prepare for the next province-wide assessment update. 

What do MPAC Property 
Inspectors look for?

“Communicating the relationship between property assessment and taxes to the 
public is a challenge for municipal finance leaders. Enhancing public understanding 
and trust in the property tax system strengthens municipal sustainability and 
MPAC’s toolkit is a valuable resource in these efforts. It helps to clarify MPAC’s role 
in determining property assessments, the role of municipalities in determining 
revenue requirements, and the relationship between the two.”

Donna Herridge 
Executive Director, Municipal Finance Officers’ Association of Ontario

https://www.mpac.ca/en/OurServices/SupportMunicipalities/PropertyAssessmentandTaxationToolkit
https://youtube.com/watch?v=0-n-mquATG0


MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  13

New Products and 
Services on the Horizon
 
As MPAC continues the essential work that is preparing 
us for the next update, we are also exploring innovative 
solutions that support service delivery and provide further 
value to our stakeholders.

We recently introduced the Annotated Assessment Act 
to support municipalities with information to help make 
informed decisions related to assessment appeals. Available 
through Municipal Connect, this comprehensive guide 
explains how the Assessment Review Board (ARB) and 
Courts have interpreted the Assessment Act, Regulations and 
ARB rules, and includes more than 800 case summaries.

Another area where we are innovating is our real-time 
values project, leveraging leading-edge data science 
methods and advanced analytics to produce point-in-
time market estimates. We foresee many benefits of this 
technology and are excited to share our progress with 
municipalities as the project evolves.   

To ensure we deliver on the commitments we make, we 
are developing a new municipal “Master Agreement” in 
collaboration with a Municipal Working Group, that will 
update and consolidate numerous existing municipal 
agreements. We look forward to sharing more information 
with municipalities as we roll out the agreement in 2023.

“The review of assessment appeals is a complicated process for municipalities. 
MPAC’s new Annotated Assessment Act resource will help the City to better 
understand what legislation, regulation, ARB rules, and influential decisions have 
said about the property assessment environment. This tool will prove to be a 
valuable starting point for our research and planning as we consider our interest 
in future assessment appeals.”

Aaron Zamler
Supervisor of Assessment, City of Vaughan 



14  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC

Looking Ahead
MPAC continues its preparations for a future province-
wide assessment update. 

As we await the Province’s direction on the next 
reassessment, we’ll continue to work hard every day to 
keep Ontario’s property inventory up-to-date to ensure 
that we’re ready for a province-wide assessment 
update whenever it is called.  We’ll remain focused on 
capturing new construction, renovations and additions 
that will deliver critical new assessment to municipal 
assessment rolls. 

In the coming year, we’ll continue sharing market 
insights and analysis that will support municipal 
decision-making to build thriving communities. And 
we’ll explore innovative ways to optimize the way we 
work to evolve the services that municipalities rely on 
while helping Ontarians better understand who we 
are, what we do and the relationship between property 
assessment and taxation.



MPAC  |  2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  15

Connect With Us

E-NEWSLETTER

Subscribe to our municipal 
e-newsletter, InTouch.

SOCIAL MEDIA

Follow us on: Subscribe:

WEBINARS

Join our webinars to hear 
about provincial issues and 
trends. Watch your email for 
registration details.

GET IN TOUCH

Need help? Find your 
Account Manager.

Accessible formats and communication supports are available upon request.

https://www.mpac.ca/en/OurServices/SupportMunicipalities/InTouchNewsletter
https://twitter.com/MPAC_Ontario
https://www.linkedin.com/company/mpac/
https://www.facebook.com/MPACOntario/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCTOMe6hNkts6kUc0yqGff1A
https://www.youtube.com/playlist?list=PLQXpjZB0TXxkhe9C6GsGlLX-CPSOFy44r
https://www.mpac.ca/en/OurServices/SupportMunicipalities/MPACContactsMunicipalities
https://www.mpac.ca/en/AboutUs/Policies/AccessibilityPolicy


16  | 2022 MUNICIPAL PARTNERSHIPS REPORT  |  MPAC



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023ACT #1

kchessell
Typewritten Text



updated Jan 27, 2023 YTD FINAL YTD FINAL DRAFT #1 DRAFT #2 %

2021 ACTUAL 2021 BUDGET 2022 ACTUAL 2022 BUDGET 2023 Budget 2023 Budget VARIANCE Share

Revenue
02‐1094‐4000 MM FIRE‐CALL REVENUE  31,421$          20,000$          11,804$          20,000$          12,000$          12,000$         (8,000)       

02‐1094‐4010 MM FIRE‐DONATIONS ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1094‐4020  MM FIRE‐OTHER REVENUE  ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1094‐4030 MM FIRE‐INTEREST EARNED ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1094‐4130  MM FIRE‐OP REV MELANCTHON  39,952.92       49,842.72       44,255.37       50,500.44       55,869.64       55,455.24     4,955          23.68% 2023

OPERATING SURPLUS MELANCTHON (9,889.80)        ‐                  (6,245.07)        (885.54)           (885.54)          5,360          23.68% 2022

02‐1094‐4230 MM FIRE‐OP REV MULMUR    119,717.60     154,598.28     143,391.07     162,761.56     180,066.36     178,730.76   15,969        76.32% 2023

OPERATING SURPLUS MULMUR (34,880.68)      ‐                  (19,370.49)      (2,854.08)        (2,854.08)      16,516        76.32% 2022

02‐1094‐3001  MM FIRE‐PR YR'S OPERATING SURPLUS  44,770.48       44,770.48       25,615.56       25,615.56       3,739.62         3,739.62        (21,876)     

02‐1094‐4310 MM FIRE‐TSFR FM OPERATING RESERVES ‐             

Total Operating Revenue 235,862$       224,441$       225,066$       233,262$       247,936$       246,186$      12,924       

Expenses
02‐1094‐5100  MM FIRE MANAGEMENT SALARIES  32,996$          35,500$          33,463$          36,210$          37,300$          37,300$         1,090           based on pay grid 

02‐1094‐5101  MM FIRE FIREHALL TRAINING & DUTY WAGES  31,578$          36,000$          27,546$          36,000$          36,000$          36,000$         ‐             
based on pay grid, can vary yr 

to yr

02‐1094‐5102  MM FIRE FIRE CALL WAGES  18,133$          27,000$          26,640$          27,000$          27,810$          27,810$         810            
based on pay grid, can vary yr 

to yr

02‐1094‐5103  MM FIRE EXTERNAL TRAINING WAGES  1,496$            5,000$            9,733$            7,500$            9,000$            9,000$           1,500         
based on actual now that fire 

collage has been closed

02‐1094‐5104 MM FIRE EMPLOYER HEALTH TAX  852$               1,000$            904$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$           ‐             

based on actuals & 3%  wage 

increase

02‐1094‐5105 MM FIRE WORKERS COMPENSATION  7,404$            6,100$            5,193$            6,100$            6,100$            7,700$           1,600         
one time credit rec'd in 2022, 

w/o cr $7700 in 2022

02‐1094‐5109  MM FIRE SECRETARIAL DUTIES  2,000$            2,000$            2,000$            2,000$            2,000$            2,000$           ‐              fixed cost

02‐1094‐5110  MM FIRE SELF CONT BREATH APP (SCBA'S)  3,634$            3,000$            3,806$            3,000$            4,000$            4,000$           1,000         
based on actuals, costs are 

increasing

02‐1094‐5112  MM FIRE VEHICLE FUEL  3,896$            3,700$            3,213$            3,700$            3,700$            3,700$           ‐             
Fuel cost were up and can vary 

drastically

02‐1094‐5114  MM FIRE BLDGS & GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 6,370$            5,000$            7,273$            5,000$            6,000$            6,000$           1,000          upgrade lights

02‐1094‐5115  MM FIRE MATERIALS/SUPPLIES  4,153$            6,000$            583$               6,000$            ‐$                 ‐$               (6,000)        reallocated to other accts

02‐1094‐5116  MM FIRE RADIO PURCHASES & REPAIRS 2,616$            4,000$            2,293$            4,000$            4,000$            4,000$           ‐             

can vary depending on repair 

needs and costs to purchase 

radios

02‐1094‐5117  MM FIRE HYDRO  4,991$            5,250$            4,557$            5,250$            5,250$            5,000$           (250)           

Based on actuals, switching to 

timers and LED lighting, expect 

to see decreases unless rates 

go up.

02‐1094‐5118  MM FIRE TRAINING COURSES  5,740$            6,000$            13,050$          8,500$            12,000$          12,000$         3,500         
based on actual now that fire 

collage has been closed

02‐1094‐5119  MM FIRE DUES, FEES & SUBCRIPTIONS 309$               410$                584$               410$                584$                1,384$           974            
Added Training Officers Assoc, 

Medicals for DZ licence

02‐1094‐5120  MM FIRE COMMUNICATIONS  18,251$          17,500$          16,436$          17,500$          17,500$          17,500$         ‐             

Dispatch, cell phone, hall 

phone, GPS on trucks, who's 

responding

02‐1094‐5121  MM FIRE MISC (AWARDS‐STATION WEAR) 365$               2,500$            2,152$            3,000$            3,000$            3,000$           ‐              Hats, shirts, service awards

02‐1094‐5122  MM FIRE TREASURERS EXPENSE  10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$          10,000$         ‐              fixed cost

02‐1094‐5123  MM FIRE PREVENTION/INSPECTIONS ‐$                300$                229$               300$                1,000$            1,000$           700            
fire prevention packages, 

smoke alarm program

02‐1094‐5124  MM FIRE PROPANE  6,836$            5,700$            6,504$            5,700$            5,700$            7,000$           1,300         
based on actuals, propane 

costs are on the rise

02‐1094‐5125  MM FIRE AUDIT  2,340$            2,341$            2,442$            2,442$            2,442$            2,442$           ‐              per quote

02‐1094‐5130 MM FIRE ASSET MANAGEMENT  809$               500$                810$               810$                810$                810$              ‐              based on costs

02‐1094‐5134  MM FIRE INSURANCE  13,634$          20,000$          15,130$          20,000$          17,000$          17,000$         (3,000)        based on estimate

02‐1094‐5140  MM FIRE TRAVEL ‐$                ‐$                 2,371$            ‐$                 5,000$            3,000$           3,000          mileage for training

02‐1094‐5141  MM FIRE MEALS 393$               650$                602$               650$                650$                650$              ‐              while on fire calls

02‐1094‐5142  MM FIRE OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES  3,531$            2,000$            3,561$            2,000$            3,000$            3,000$           1,000         
computers, MS emails 

subscriptions, Keystone

02‐1094‐5143  MM FIRE MEDICAL SUPPLIES  1,032$            1,000$            81$                  1,500$            1,000$            1,000$           (500)           

Low in 2022 b/c obtained free 

supplies from Province due to 

COVID, did have as many calls 

so didn't use as many supplies

02‐1094‐5144  MM FIRE EQUIP REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE 3,637$            1,500$            1,147$            1,500$            2,000$            3,000$           1,500         
Batteries, signs, jaws of life 

mtn $2500 bi‐annually

02‐1094‐5145 MM FIRE‐MTO REPORTS 350$               300$                (14)$                400$                300$                300$              (100)           
Dependant on number of 

reports pulled

02‐1094‐5146 MM FIRE BANK CHARGES 377$               440$                271$               340$                340$                340$              ‐             
can vary depending on 

transactions

02‐1094‐5150 MM FIRE IT SUPPORT ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 500$              500            

02‐1094‐5160 MM FIRE ‐ EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 1,696$            500$                2,411$            1,700$            7,200$            2,500$           800             Anything for vehiciles, hose

MULMUR MELANCTHON FIRE DEPARTMENT

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023ACT #2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



updated Jan 27, 2023 YTD FINAL YTD FINAL DRAFT #1 DRAFT #2 %

2021 ACTUAL 2021 BUDGET 2022 ACTUAL 2022 BUDGET 2023 Budget 2023 Budget VARIANCE Share

MULMUR MELANCTHON FIRE DEPARTMENT

02‐1094‐5161 MM FIRE ‐ PUMPER #41 1999 FREIGHTLINER 9,362$            3,500$            4,215$            3,500$            5,000$            5,000$           1,500         
Needs repairs to get it through 

until replace purchased

02‐1094‐5162 MM FIRE ‐ 2020 FORD RESCUE #42 1,498$            1,000$            873$               1,500$            2,000$            1,500$           ‐             

02‐1094‐5163 MM FIRE ‐ TANKER #43 2020 FREIGHTLINER 1,541$            2,000$            4,966$            2,000$            2,000$            2,000$           ‐             

02‐1094‐5164 MM FIRE ‐ PUMPER #44 2009 SPAR 7,102$            5,000$            5,796$            5,000$            5,500$            6,000$           1,000          Needs major repair

02‐1094‐5165 MM FIRE ‐ 2006 TRAILER (RME) 915$               1,000$            506$               1,000$            1,000$            1,000$           ‐             

02‐1094‐5166 MM FIRE ‐ ARGO 408$               750$                ‐$                750$                750$                750$              ‐             

Total Operating Expenses 210,247$       224,441$       221,326$       233,262$       247,936$       246,186$      12,924        5.54%

‐             

Operating Surplus (deficit) 25,616$         ‐$                3,740$           ‐$                ‐$                ‐$              ‐             

CAPITAL REVENUE
02‐1095‐4010 MM FIRE‐CAPITAL DONATIONS ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4030 MM FIRE‐INTEREST EARNED 1,029$            1,500$            6,371$            1,000$            1,000$            1,000$           ‐             

02‐1095‐4040 MM FIRE‐CAPITAL GRANT REVENUE 5,400$            ‐$                 4,272$            ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4050 MM FIRE‐SALE OF VEHICLE ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4060 MM FIRE‐SALE OF EQUIPMENT ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                ‐$                 ‐$                 ‐$               ‐             

02‐1095‐4140 MM FIRE‐CAP REVENUE MELANCTHON 58,750$          58,750$          62,500$          62,500$          72,500$          72,500$         10,000       

02‐1095‐4240 MM FIRE‐CAP REVENUE MULMUR 58,750$          58,750$          62,500$          62,500$          72,500$          72,500$         10,000       

02‐1095‐4300 MM FIRE‐TSFR FROM CAPITAL RESERVES 22,786$          21,286$          7,532.43         17,721$          17,000$          17,000$         (721)           

Total Capital Revenue 146,715$       140,286$       143,175$       143,721$       163,000$       163,000$      19,279       

CAPITAL EXPENSES ‐             

02‐1095‐5200  MM FIRE CAPITAL PURCHASES 29,215$          22,786$          18,175$          18,721$          18,000$          18,000$         (721)           

02‐1095‐5300  MM FIRE TSF TO CAPITAL RESERVES  117,500$        117,500$        125,000$        125,000$        145,000$        145,000$       20,000       

146,715$        140,286$        143,175$        143,721$        163,000$        163,000$       19,279        13.41%

Capital Surplus (deficit) ‐$               ‐$                ‐$               ‐$                ‐$                ‐$             

CAPITAL BUDGET



updated Jan 27, 2023 Final Draft 

2021 2021 2022 2022 2023 Budget

Account Description Actual Budget Acutal Budget Budget Variance Comments

REVENUES

01‐2000‐4000    MULMUR OPERATING LEVY 53,349           53,349         74,643.37     61,016.88     47,773.00         ‐13,244

01‐2000‐4005 MULMUR CAPITAL LEVY 13,626.50     15,000.00         1,374

01‐2000‐4010    MELANCTHON LEVY 53,349           53,349         74,643.37     61,016.88     47,773.00         ‐13,244

01‐2000‐4015 MELANCTHON CAPITAL LEVY 13,626.50     15,000.00         1,374

01‐2000‐4020 DONATION REVENUE ‐                 ‐                ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐4030 FUNDRAISING REVENUE ‐                 ‐                5,830.00       ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐4040 GRANT REVENUE ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐4100 MINOR RATE RENTAL REVENUE      36,596           30,600         46,259.98     45,918.00     50,000.00         4,082

01‐2000‐4110 ICE RENTAL REVENUE (PRIME)                 38,797           29,580         41,768.68     45,000.00     43,000.00         ‐2,000

01‐2000‐4115 ICE RENTAL REVENUE (NON‐PRIME) 2,620             510               990.82           2,600.00       1,000.00           ‐1,600

01‐2000‐4120 NON‐RESIDENT USER FEES                        621                 ‐                ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐4200 BOOTH RENTAL REVENUE 418                 2,000            1,743.02       1,100.00       3,000.00           1,900

01‐2000‐4210 HALL RENTAL REVENUE ‐                 1,000            1,060.37       1,000.00       1,000.00           0

01‐2000‐4220 FLOOR RENTAL REVENUE 65                   ‐                ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐4230 SIGN RENTAL REVENUE                             3,400             3,580            3,450.00       3,400.00       3,400.00           0

01‐2000‐4240 VENDING MACHINE REVENUE ‐                 ‐                178.35           ‐                 500.00               500

01‐2000‐4250 GRASS CUTTING REVENUE 2,750             ‐                ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐4300 PENALTIES & INTEREST 579                 850               1,449.84       700.00           800.00               100

01‐2000‐4500 PRIOR YEAR SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 0 33,947 (25,740.75)    (25,740.75)    ‐                     25,741

TOTAL REVENUE 192,542         208,765       226,277.05   223,264.00   228,246.00       4,982

EXPENSES 0

01‐2000‐7000 WAGES 66,230           72,000         47,737.41     66,000.00     55,000.00         ‐11,000

01‐2000‐7005 BENEFITS‐EI/CPP/WSIB/EHT                     5,809             5,600            4,454.78       5,200.00       5,500.00           300

01‐2000‐7010 BENEFITS‐OMERS 5,253             5,254            3,326.45       5,300.00       4,000.00           ‐1,300

01‐2000‐7012 MILEAGE 217                 300               47.24             300.00           200.00               ‐100

01‐2000‐7015 STAFF TRAINING/DUES, FEES, SUB. 442                 1,000            ‐                 500.00           500.00               0 First Aid, Propane

01‐2000‐7100 OFFICE/COMPUTER SUPPLIES                  3,347             2,000            2,568.67       2,100.00       2,500.00           400

01‐2000‐7110 COMMUNICATION                                 1,830             2,000            984.02           2,000.00       1,000.00           ‐1,000

01‐2000‐7115 INSURANCE                                     16,732           16,000         16,688.16     18,000.00     20,000.00         2,000

01‐2000‐7120 HEALTH & SAFETY 2,537             2,500            271.00           2,500.00       2,600.00           100

01‐2000‐7122 SECURITY 7,912             ‐                ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐7125 PROF FEES ‐ AUDIT                             589                 611               100.00           611.00           611.00               0

01‐2000‐7130 PROF FEES ‐ WATER TESTING 322                 400               258.00           400.00           400.00               0

01‐2000‐7150 BANK CHARGES 1,203             1,200            1,244.46       1,200.00       1,235.00           35

01‐2000‐7200 HYDRO                                         35,927           40,000         30,674.77     40,000.00     36,000.00         ‐4,000

01‐2000‐7210 FURNACE FUEL 7,853             7,000            17,480.61     7,900.00       17,000.00         9,100

01‐2000‐7215 ZAMBONI PROPANE 1,033             1,000            1,559.40       2,000.00       2,000.00           0

01‐2000‐7216 PROPANE BACK 2,874             2,000            6,358.11       4,000.00       6,000.00           2,000

01‐2000‐7220 BLDG/GROUNDS MAINTENANCE             13,778           20,000         25,258.58     20,000.00     25,000.00         5,000 Add in Wireless access wifi points

01‐2000‐7230 BOOTH PROPANE & MAINT. 934                 400               1,671.26       1,000.00       1,700.00           700 high due to booth clean up

01‐2000‐7240 ICE PLANT/MACH MAINT                          24,800           12,000         16,265.88     17,000.00     17,000.00         0

Ice in/out, calcium, zamboni 

repairs, blade sharpening. Costs 

high in 2021 due to compressor 

repair.

01‐2000‐7245 LAWN MOWER EXPENSE 1,365             ‐                ‐                 ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐7300 FUNDRAISING EXPENSE ‐                 ‐                2,791.66       ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐7400 BAD DEBT                                    ‐                 ‐                ‐                 ‐                 ‐                     0

01‐2000‐7450 TSFR TO CAPITAL RESERVES 21                   0
Ice surface needs to be replaced 

cost is $800,000.

01‐2000‐7500 CAPITAL PURCHASES 10,700           17,500         18,351.46     15,000.00     30,000.00         15,000

Roll up for zamboni door, man 

door to zamboni room, roof over 

Norduff room

01‐2000‐7550 RENOVATIONS 6,573             ‐                12,885.63     12,253.00     ‐                     ‐12,253

TOTAL EXPENSES 218,283         208,765       210,977.55   223,264.00   228,246.00       4,982

Net Income/(Deficit) (25,741) 0 15,299.50     ‐                 ‐                    

NDCC Board of Management
2023 Budget

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023ACT #3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.1.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

































































































kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.1.2

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text















kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.1.3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.1.4

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.1.5

kchessell
Typewritten Text



 

The Corporation of 

THE TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

 

 

 
REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 
TO:   MAYOR WHITE AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL 
 
FROM:  DENISE B. HOLMES, AMCT, CAO/CLERK 
 
SUBJECT:  MUNICIPAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REPORT  
 
MEETING DATE: FEBRUARY 16, 2023 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
In 2021, the Town of Orangeville received a provincial modernization grant to review the 
municipality’s telecommunications systems for current and future state needs. The 
review also identified coverage and reception within Dufferin County as a whole. 
 
The Town of Orangeville has hosted information sessions with fire departments, County 
of Dufferin, Town of Caledon, Upper Grand District School Board and Dufferin County 
municipalities. These sessions have identified gaps in the current Land Mobile Radio 
systems (LMR). The LMR systems are a critical component of emergency services 
communications and are relied on during emergency situations. 
 

DISCUSSION 

The current communications systems were found to be fragmented and lacking the 

ability to provide seamless communications between emergency services.  A universal 

telecommunications system would allow for continuous and reliable telecommunications 

for our public works department, fire departments and emergency services, even when 

providing mutual aid out of their regular areas. A localized communications system 

would provide security to system failures, to ensure telecommunications are protected 

during situations such as surges and disasters. 

There are multiple funding opportunities in which Dufferin County municipalities may 

jointly apply for, including but not limited to: 

• CRTC Broadband Fund;  

 

 

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.2.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



 

• CIRA Community Investment Program; 

• Govt. of Canada Universal Broadband Fund; 

• Govt. of Canada / Prov. Of Ontario Rural & Northern Infrastructure Stream of 

Investing in Canada Infrastructure Program; 

• Prov. Of Ontario ICON Fund; and 

• P1A / PSBN Accelerator Program.  

 

NG 9-1-1 networks are anticipated to be up and running before March 2025. With the 

delay in supply and delivery of materials, it may take several years to implement a 

telecommunications system in Dufferin County.  Therefore, it is important to 

commence discussions in a timely manner, including applying for funding. The Town of 

Orangeville will be moving forward with this project in 2023 and is looking to identify 

municipalities that may be interested in further pursuing a joint venture.   

I have attached the Town of Orangeville’s Telecommunications Report and the Briefing 
Update and Discussion Presentation from Black Castle Networks.  A recording of the 
presentation to Orangeville Council by Black Castle Networks, Orangeville’s hired 
consultant, is available at this link:   
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=v2L_129PfC8&t=3632s.   
 
FINANCIAL IMPACTS 
 
To be determined. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that Council indicate its willingness to continue to discuss the 
establishment of a County-wide Telecommunications System with a goal of determining 
cost and sources of funding. 
 
THAT Council receive the Municipal Telecommunications Report of Denise Holmes, 

CAO/Clerk;  

AND THAT Council support the concept of a universal telecommunications system in 

Dufferin County that is inclusive of the lands within the Township of Melancthon. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
 
Denise B. Holmes, AMCT 
CAO/Clerk 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=v2L_129PfC8&t=3632s


   Report 
 

Subject:  Telecommunications Report 
    
Department: Corporate Services 
 
Division: IT  
 
Report #: CPS-2022-062 
 
Meeting Date: 2022-08-08 
 
 
Recommendations 

That report CPS-2022-062 Telecommunications Report, be received;  

And that staff be authorized to pursue grant funding for initiatives related to 
upgrading the Town’s telecommunication systems; 

 
Background and Analysis 

In 2021, the Town of Orangeville received a provincial modernization grant to review the 
municipality’s telecommunications systems for current and future state needs.  The 
review, conducted by Black Castle Networks (BCN), included a current state 
assessment of existing telecom assets such as fiber network, wireless towers, radio 
systems, and services currently utilized.  

It also focused on identifying opportunities to leverage next generation networks that 
would create efficiencies and future proof the Town’s system infrastructure, such as 
public sector broadband network, 5g etc. 

In October 2021, the Town initiated the first stakeholder meetings, inviting the Broader 
Public Sector groups, such as Fire Departments, County of Dufferin, Town of Caledon, 
Upper Grand School Board.   

These stakeholder sessions identified gaps in the current Land Mobile Radio systems 
(LMR). The LMR systems are a critical component of emergency services 
communications and are relied on during emergency scenarios that represent a 
significant risk to life, property, and disasters-based events. 

In addition to identifying future ready opportunities for the Town’s infrastructure, the 
report detailed specific risks/deficiencies in the current state that are high priority.  It 
indicates that there are numerous government grants along with private/public 



Report CPS-2022-062  Page 2 

partnership opportunities that can assist in the funding / cost sharing of these projects.  
These grants have been designed to help modernize radio and wireless 5G services for 
Municipalities across Canada’s public safety network, due to aging infrastructure, and a 
significant shift from legacy radio systems to modern 5G radio technologies. 

The Town does have funding available to initiate the upgrades to the wireless system, 
but acknowledges the broader upgrades require additional funding.  As a result, staff 
are requesting authorization to apply for funding to remediate identified issues and 
improve system infrastructure more broadly. In the event staff are unsuccessful the 
requests will be brought forward in a future budget process. 

The benefits to the Town focusing on its own robust telecommunications system are 
underscored by the recent events with Rogers Telecommunications. It is more relevant 
now than ever that the town ensures localized communications systems are cable of 
handling surges (increased loads when a situation occurs) and disasters events, from 
technological, environmental, or malicious intent. 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

Strategic Alignment 
 
Orangeville Forward – Strategic Plan 
 
Priority Area: Municipal Service 
 
Objective: Delivered with a focus on customer service • Effective and efficient • Respectful 
of cost and impact to the community 
 
Priority Area: Strong Governance 
 
Objectives: Financial responsibility • Positive relationships with other governments, 
agencies, and private sector 
 
Sustainable Infrastructure 
 
Objectives:  Maintain current assets • Plan for growth • Support innovation   
 
Sustainable Neighbourhood Action Plan 
 
Theme: Corporate and Fiscal 
 
Strategy: Encourage and support collaboration to implement sustainability initiatives 
between municipal and community organizations, local Indigenous groups, conservation 
authority, colleges, and adjacent municipalities and the County. 
 
 



Report CPS-2022-062  Page 3 

Notice Provisions 

N/A 

Financial Impact 
Orangeville has budgeted $900,000 to the project in 2022 via two separate Land Mobile 
Radio projects.  Given the current market situation, any additional funding required will 
be brought forward in a future funding request and more information will be available 
upon the completion of the next project phase (radio frequency survey). 
 
The Town also will request grant funding and explore private/public partnerships on the 
broader systems to reduce additional funding and develop a safe and resilient 
emergency communication system. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted Reviewed by 
 
Andrea McKinney Jason Hall 
General Manager, Corporate Services  Manager, Information Technology 
 
  
 
Jason Hall,  
IT Manager, Information Technology 
 
 
Attachment(s):  1. Telecom Presentation    
 
 
  



Report CPS-2022-062  Page 4 

Report Approval Details 

Document Title: Telecommunications Report - CPS-2022-062.docx 

Attachments:  

Final Approval Date: Jul 28, 2022 

 

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below: 

Andrea McKinney 

Nandini Syed 

No Signature - Task assigned to Raymond Osmond was completed by delegate 
Andrea McKinney 

Raymond Osmond 



Black Castle Networks Inc. – CONFIDENTIAL – Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved

August 8th, 2022

Town of Orangeville 
& Dufferin Area Stakeholders
Project: Consulting Services for a Telecommunications Review

Briefing Update & Discussion



Current Public Safety 
Communications 

Issues

2

Black Castle Networks Inc. – CONFIDENTIAL – Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved



GEOGRAPHIC VIEW OF RF COVERAGE / RECEPTION PROBLEMS:

Town of Orangeville & Dufferin Area Stakeholders
Telecommunications Review

3

Black Castle Networks Inc. Confidential  - Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved



GEOGRAPHIC VIEW OF RF COVERAGE / RECEPTION PROBLEMS:

Town of Orangeville & Dufferin Area Stakeholders
Telecommunications Review

4

Black Castle Networks Inc. Confidential  - Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved

Staff interviewed reported concerns 
in the noted red areas – problems 
with basic radio reception and 
interoperability among Fire agencies 
and neighboring agencies.

These serious issues are a health & 
safety concern + a 911 operations 
concern + a liability for the 
concerned parties  corrective 
action should be taken ASAP.



WHAT DID WE DO TO GET HERE?

Town of Orangeville & Dufferin Area Stakeholders
Telecommunications Review

5

Black Castle Networks Inc. Confidential  - Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved

1. Incomplete / Fragmented County System per original Simulcast System Design Plan
a) - lack of inter-site linkages for wide-area comms in original backhaul / system design means single 

site-based users cannot communicate with other users in the County or users en-route to 911 call
b) - potential RF self-interference issues while paging volunteer Fire Fighters
c) - RF coverage gaps in original RF design due to non-optimized RF site locations
d) - lack of interoperability with neighbouring systems in the design (no ISSI linkages, site links)
e) - legacy analog LMR technology without planned interoperability across radio sites
f) - unencrypted LMR communications open to public
g) - no cohesive County-wide radio system equipment strategy & no Public Safety data capabilities
h) - a number of single-points of failure in backhaul design & system design

2. Overall System Maintenance Problems & Operations Issues
a) - lack of on-site spares puts system at risk of multi-day outages if breakage occurs
b) - no documentation / no organized radio system info rapidly available for emergencies / disasters
c) - questions about scope of contracts for maintenance services and/or expired contracts

3. Equipment Incompatibilities between County & Orangeville & Neighbouring Fire Agencies
a) - Incompatibility of radio equipment between County and Orangeville Fire agencies, and 

neighbouring agencies, which necessitate physical use of “donor radios”  risk
b) - Original procurement & design  lack of strategic / interop. planning & infra. lifecycle planning



Opportunities to Solve 
Existing Issues & 

Improve 911 Response

6

Black Castle Networks Inc. – CONFIDENTIAL – Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved



Town of Orangeville & Dufferin Area Stakeholders
Telecommunications Review

7

Black Castle Networks Inc. Confidential  - Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved

ROM EVALUATION – ORANGEVILLE SOLUTION OVERVIEW:

+ Optional County Scenario:
“County-Wide” Scenario with added County site locations & 
County users  Total of 6 LMR Sites & Between 6-9 PSBN Sites
‡ Please see the Report - Extended Summary for scenario details



Town of Orangeville & Dufferin Area Stakeholders
Telecommunications Review

8

Black Castle Networks Inc. Confidential  - Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved

TELECOM INVESTMENT - GRANT & FUNDING ELIGBILITY
Examples of Grants Orangeville & Dufferin Area Stakeholders could apply to for funding:

1. CRTC Broadband Fund – [$750M over 5 yrs.]
2. CIRA (Canadian Internet Registration Authority) Community Investment Program          

[Up to $1.25M per year in $250k / $100k grants]
3. Govt. of Canada Universal Broadband Fund (UBF) – [$6B over 10 yrs.]
4. Govt. of Canada / Prov. of Ontario – Rural & Northern Infrastructure Stream of Investing 

in Canada Infrastructure Program – [$2B over 10 years; up to $5M per proj.]
5. Prov. of Ontario ICON Fund – [$4B over 4 yrs.]
6. PIA / PSBN Accelerator Program (Being Setup) – P3 Accelerator Fund – [$28B over 7 yrs.]

Programs have varying requirements & annual deadlines / application cycles.



KEY BENEFITS OF THE PROPOSED SOLUTION

Town of Orangeville
Telecommunications Review

9

Black Castle Networks Inc. Confidential  - Copyright 2021 – All Rights Reserved

LMR  = “Land Mobile Radio” / PSBN = “Public Safety Broadband Network”

1. Remove Potential Legal Liabilities from Radio System Failures / Inability to Communicate
a) - Correcting the longstanding LMR issues will mitigate and remove potential liabilities due to 911 
operations staff unable to call for help in an emergency, or due to worsened 911 outcomes for 
civilians in the event of communications mix-ups during 911 operations

2. Improve Interoperability among current 911 field staff (Fire, Police, EMS)
a) - Correcting the longstanding LMR issues will improve 911 response & coordination
b) - Improved 911 response outcomes and Improved Community Safety

3. Deployment of a Hybrid LMR-PSBN model brings added Critical Infrastructure & 911 Benefits
a) - New data & Private 5G capabilities – Deploying a Hybrid LMR-PSBN system brings new voice & data 

capabilities for town, utility, critical infrastructure, 911 users and as a tool for digital divide / access
b) - Enhanced Cybersecurity for Critical Infrastructure vs. Commercial Carriers
c) - PSBN has a positive ROI for investment via significant cost savings on telecom service vs. status quo
d) - PSBN improves 911 communications reliability & resiliency in the event of commercial carrier outages 

(e.g., recent Rogers outage) or disaster surge scenarios / evacuations in natural disasters, etc.
e) - PSBN significantly improves municipal disaster preparedness for 911 access & 911 response
f) - PSBN provides added call capacity + backup wireless access for Hybrid LMR device users



Question & Answer 

10

Black Castle Networks Inc. – CONFIDENTIAL – Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved



Thank You!

11

Black Castle Networks Inc. – CONFIDENTIAL – Copyright 2022 – All Rights Reserved



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.3.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text































































 

The Corporation of the 

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:       Council         
 
FROM:    Sarah Culshaw, Treasurer/Deputy Clerk        
 
DATE:     February 16, 2023       
 
SUBJECT:  Budget Draft  
 
                                                                                     
 
 
Purpose 
 
The purpose of this report is to present the 2023 Draft Budget to Council for review and discussion. 
 
Discussion 
 
 
Attached with the Draft Budget is: 

 Payroll Report 
 2023 Draft Budget as at February 16, 2023 
 Reserve Chart  
 Development Charge Chart 
 Possible 2023 Capital Expenditures 

 
To follow: 

 5 year capital plan for Capital needs and possible ways to fund them.  
 
Most operating costs in the budget are standard costs.  Below are considerations for operating 
expenses that out of the ordinary: 

 Markdale Hospital donation ($20,000) 
 Horning’s Mills Wishlist 
 Strategic Plan, Employee Compensation Plan, Official Plan, Zoning By-Law (funded with 

working reserves) 
 
 
 
 
 

kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.3.2

kchessell
Typewritten Text



Possible considerations and discussions for Capital expenses: 
 10-year loan for Tractor, snow blower and brusher – any further discussions?  
 Further equipment discussions 
 Further bridge work discussions (2023 costs $78,000 funded through tax base) 
 Road work – listed in priority ($900,000 - $387,000 funded through reserves $513,000 

through tax base.)   Should we defer any other project(s) and add more to reserves?   
 If projects come in over budget, would council like to consider doing a motion to put it in 

reserves? 
 
CPI last year (2022) was 7.13% (from January to December).  The budget presented has a 7.29% 
increase with 1.79% growth.  Is there a tax rate change that Council feels is an acceptable - would 
this include growth?   
 
 
Next budget meeting I will have household assessment chart to show what impact tax changes will 
have on residents. 
 
Respectfully submitted. 
 
Sarah Culshaw 



 

The Corporation of the 

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 

157101 Highway 10, Melancthon, Ontario, L9V 2E6 

 
 
STAFF REPORT 

TO:       Council       

FROM:    Sarah Culshaw, Treasurer/Deputy-Clerk       

DATE:     February 16, 2023       

SUBJECT:  Salary Report      

                                                                                    
 
Purpose 
 
That the Report of Sarah Culshaw, Treasurer/Deputy-Clerk be received and that Council 
approve the employee band grid increase of 4.5% effective January 1, 2023. 
 
Discussion 
 
This report is to provide information to Council regarding the 2023 Salary increase 
based on consumer indexing and comparisons with the County of Dufferin and 
neighboring Municipalities. 
 
The Market Compensation Review done in 2018 by Ward and Uptigrove was approved 
effective August 1, 2018 along with Appendix A; implement the pay Administration 
Policy, Appendix B and communicate the results of the Report to Staff.  In Appendix B 
– Pay Administration Policy, it states that each year, staff will bring recommendations 
forward to Council based on the annual Stats Ontario CPI for the 12 months ended 
September 30th each year.  For 2021/22 the average CPI was 6.46%. 
 
Below please find the approved increase from the other Dufferin County Municipalities. 

    
   2023  

 Township 
Rate 

Increase  
 Amaranth 3.00% Approved but to be reevaluated  
 East Garafraxa 3.00% Waiting on approval 
 Grand Valley 6.5% Approved starting July 1, 2023    
 Melancthon   Waiting on approval 
 Mono 6.5% Waiting on approval 
 Mulmur 4.00% Waiting on approval 

 Shelburne 4.00% Approved 
 Dufferin County 4.00% Waiting on approval 

     



 
 
The 4.5 % suggested increase is to stay competitive with the other municipalities in 
Dufferin, and to be consistent with the CPI increase.  
 

Respectfully submitted. 
 
Sarah Culshaw 
Treasurer/Deputy-Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

2022 2022 2023
BUDGET DEPARTMENT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

PAGE EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023

GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES
4 COUNCIL 112,350.00$             102,998.33$              117,420.00$           
5 ADMINISTRATION 650,504.00$             615,248.45$              720,492.00$           
5 TAXATION WRITE OFFS 75,000.00$               21,669.54$                35,000.00$             

837,854.00$          739,916.32$           872,912.00$        

PROTECTION TO PERSONAL & PROPERTY
6 FIRE SERVICES 281,679.99$             284,745.50$              354,529.91$           
6 POLICING 432,024.00$             426,036.85$              447,718.00$           
6 BYLAW ENFORCEMENT 12,000.00$               8,628.15$                  12,000.00$             
6 CONSERVATION AUTHORITY 33,615.80$               33,609.80$                34,800.04$             
6 ANIMAL CONTROL 3,500.00$                 8,836.82$                  11,200.00$             
6 STREET LIGHTS 6,500.00$                 5,178.88$                  6,000.00$               

769,319.79$          767,036.00$           866,247.95$        

TRANSPORTATION SERVICES
7 SALARIES & ADMINISTRATION 551,100.00$             509,685.23$              565,820.00$           
7 ROAD DEPARTMENT BUILDING & MISC. 145,500.00$             160,008.98$              189,300.00$           
8 ROAD EQUIPMENT 266,780.00$             306,124.37$              320,000.00$           
8 NEW EQUIPMENT 803,349.13$             144,793.00$              822,000.00$           
9 BRIDGES, CULVERTS, DRAINS 458,408.00$             367,010.52$              173,907.00$           
9 ROADSIDE 65,000.00$               14,635.98$                45,175.00$             
9 HARDTOP 51,700.00$               22,333.78$                48,500.00$             
9 LOOSETOP 527,000.00$             500,757.83$              602,000.00$           
10 WINTER CONTROL 41,225.00$               41,576.22$                55,000.00$             
10 ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 350,000.00$             503,304.74$              900,000.00$           
10 RESERVES 150,000.00$             150,000.00$              150,000.00$           
10 BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 119,568.00$             129,690.70$              -$                      

3,529,630.13$       2,849,921.35$        3,871,702.00$     

     TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON 2023 DRAFT BUDGET



2

2022 2022 2023
BUDGET DEPARTMENT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET
PAGE EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023

11 ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 38,600.00$               25,833.86$                38,917.22$             
38,600.00$            25,833.86$             38,917.22$          

11 RECREATION 176,808.00$             173,403.68$              163,273.00$           
176,808.00$          173,403.68$           163,273.00$        

11 HEALTH & SOCIAL SERVICES (CEMETERY) 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
5,000.00$              5,000.00$               5,000.00$            

11 LIBRARY 67,100.00$               67,443.00$                70,000.00$             
67,100.00$            67,443.00$             70,000.00$          

12 PLANNING 80,000.00$               70,802.78$                150,000.00$           
80,000.00$            70,802.78$             150,000.00$        

12 DRAINAGE 55,380.00$               32,644.78$                55,000.00$             
55,380.00$            32,644.78$             55,000.00$          

12 RESERVES 33,000.00$               33,000.00$                5,000.00$               
33,000.00$            33,000.00$             5,000.00$            

12 SUBTOTAL EXPENSES 5,592,691.92$       4,765,001.77$        6,098,052.17$     



3

2022 2022 2023
BUDGET DEPARTMENT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

PAGE REVENUE SUMMARY AS AT FEB 16, 2023

13 TAXATION 
SUPPLEMENTALS 85,000.00$               83,072.57$                80,000.00$             
GRANT IN LIEU 1,900.00$                 1,946.42$                  1,950.00$               

86,900.00$            85,018.99$             81,950.00$          

13 GRANTS 515,029.00$             521,734.68$              422,082.00$           
515,029.00$          521,734.68$           422,082.00$        

13 ADMINISTRATION 23,650.00$               27,569.00$                25,370.00$             
23,650.00$            27,569.00$             25,370.00$          

14 PROTECTIONS TO PERSONS & PROPERTY 4,100.00$                 5,119.00$                  5,000.00$               
4,100.00$              5,119.00$               5,000.00$            

14 ROADS 1,092,930.00$           809,640.00$              1,354,642.35$        
1,092,930.00$       809,640.00$           1,354,642.35$     

14 PLANNING 19,700.00$               24,750.00$                53,500.00$             
19,700.00$            24,750.00$             53,500.00$          

15 OTHER 770,550.00$             989,050.20$              846,150.00$           
770,550.00$             989,050.20$              846,150.00$           

15 SUBTOTAL  REVENUE 2,512,859.00$       2,462,881.87$        2,788,694.35$     



4

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # COUNCIL EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5001 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
1010 SALARIES, MEETINGS 92,000.00$               92,162.27$                96,000.00$             
1025 RECEIVER GENERAL 3,800.00$                 4,272.41$                  4,450.00$               
1030 EHT 1,600.00$                 1,797.24$                  1,870.00$               
1070 MILEAGE 1,000.00$                 50.50$                      1,000.00$               
1080 CONFERENCES/CONVENTIONS/SEMINARS/TRAINING 7,750.00$                 1,866.34$                  7,500.00$               
1090 MEALS 200.00$                   -$                         600.00$                 
2190 MISCELLANEOUS/HYBRID COUNCIL 6,000.00$                 2,849.57$                  6,000.00$               

TOTAL COUNCIL EXPENDITURES 112,350.00$          102,998.33$           117,420.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5002 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
1010 WAGES, VACATION PAY, UNUSED SICK PAY 309,000.00$             306,111.35$              321,360.00$           
1020 BENEFITS 32,000.00$               26,746.21$                32,000.00$             
1022 TRAINING 3,000.00$                 1,134.63$                  1,500.00$               
1025 RECEIVER GENERAL 18,000.00$               15,940.97$                18,720.00$             
1026 MEETINGS 1,000.00$                 441.80$                    1,000.00$               
1030 EHT 6,000.00$                 6,001.31$                  6,240.00$               
1040 WSIB 8,500.00$                 7,938.78$                  8,840.00$               
1064 OMERS TOWNSHIP 33,000.00$               31,209.82$                34,300.00$             
1070 MILEAGE 1,500.00$                 388.50$                    1,500.00$               
1080 CONFERENCES -$                        -$                         4,000.00$               
2025 OFFICE FURNITURE 1,000.00$                 183.16$                    1,200.00$               
2010 OFFICE SUPPLIES 6,800.00$                 6,409.07$                  6,800.00$               
2020 POSTAGE 7,000.00$                 6,538.02$                  7,000.00$               
2030 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 3,500.00$                 4,483.72$                  4,500.00$               
2035 COMPUTER PROGRAM UPDATES & IT SERVICES 16,000.00$               15,447.44$                23,500.00$             
2036 COMPUTERS & SERVER 500.00$                   -$                         500.00$                 
2037 ESRI LICENSE AGREEMENT 3,100.00$                 3,052.80$                  3,100.00$               
2040 ADVERTISING 1,500.00$                 1,545.73$                  1,500.00$               
2050 AUDIT 21,000.00$               23,733.44$                24,000.00$             
2060 MEMBERSHIPS 4,100.00$                 4,656.24$                  4,000.00$               
2070 HEATING 3,400.00$                 2,984.83$                  3,400.00$               
2080 HYDRO 4,800.00$                 5,012.01$                  5,300.00$               
2090 TELEPHONE 2,800.00$                 2,253.85$                  2,500.00$               
2094 INTERNET 1,800.00$                 1,692.80$                  1,800.00$               
2095 WEBSITE MAINTENANCE -$                        929.57$                    500.00$                 

OGRA?



5

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5002 EXPENDITURES (CONTINUED) AS AT FEB 16, 2023
STRATEGIC PLAN -$                        30,000.00$             

2100 PROFESSIONAL FEES - LEGAL 25,000.00$               19,302.95$                25,000.00$             
2102 INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER SERVICES 5,000.00$                 6,754.51$                  3,000.00$               
2103 HEALTH AND SAFETY SERVICES 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
2109 EMPLOYEE TOWNSHIP COMPENSATION PLAN -$                        25,000.00$             
2110 INSURANCE 55,000.00$               47,424.13$                55,000.00$             
2120 ELECTION 15,000.00$               16,678.10$                -$                      
2162 BLDG MAINTENANCE 4,000.00$                 1,694.79$                  8,000.00$               
2163 OFFICE CLEANING 2,400.00$                 1,526.40$                  2,400.00$               
2164 LANDSCAPING & GRASS CUTTING 300.00$                   -$                         300.00$                 
2165 WATER SAMPLING 125.00$                   100.84$                    125.00$                 
2170 COVID-19 EXPENSES 5,000.00$                 1,619.22$                  -$                      
2190 OTHER/MISCELLANEOUS 5,000.00$                 2,546.83$                  4,000.00$               
2200 PETTY CASH 500.00$                   20.00$                      500.00$                 
4030 BANK CHARGES 1,300.00$                 937.97$                    1,300.00$               
6135 GRANT TO OTHERS 2,500.00$                 3,750.00$                  3,750.00$               
6133 DONATION TO MARKDALE HOSPITAL (5YRS) 15,000.00$               15,000.00$                20,000.00$             
6136 ERSKINE CLINIC 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
7011 LOAN FOR MUNICIPAL EXPANSION 13,057.00$               13,056.66$                13,057.00$             

TOTAL 650,504.00$          615,248.45$           720,492.00$        

4010 TOTAL TAX WRITE OFF EXPENDITURES 75,000.00$            21,669.54$             35,000.00$          

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENDITURES 837,854.00$          739,916.32$           872,912.00$        



6

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # PROTECTION TO PERSONS/PROPERTY BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
FIRE SERVICES

3 6010 MULMUR MELANCTHON FD 103,689.86$             106,755.37$              117,430.91$           
3 6020 SHELBURNE AND DISTRICT FD 112,990.13$             112,990.13$              167,099.00$           
3 6030 TOWNSHIP OF SOUTHGATE FD - OPER/CAP 65,000.00$               65,000.00$                70,000.00$             

SUB TOTAL 281,679.99$          284,745.50$           354,529.91$        

POLICING
4 3050 POLICING 419,774.00$             419,266.19$              435,468.00$           
4 3055 POLICING - ESO 350.00$                   246.66$                    350.00$                 
4 3052 POLICING - RIDE 6,600.00$                 6,524.00$                  6,600.00$               
4 3053 POLICE SERVICES BOARD 300.00$                   -$                         300.00$                 
4 2310 TASK FORCE 5,000.00$                 5,036.10$                  5,000.00$               

SUB TOTAL 432,024.00$          426,036.85$           447,718.00$        

BY LAW ENFORCEMENT
4 6155 BY LAW ENFORCEMENT 12,000.00$            8,628.15$               12,000.00$          

CONSERVATION AREA
4 6040 NOTTAWASAGA VALLEY CA 13,228.80$               13,222.80$                13,745.04$             
4 6050 GRAND RIVER CA 20,387.00$               20,387.00$                21,055.00$             

SUB TOTAL 33,615.80$            33,609.80$             34,800.04$          

ANIMAL CONTROL
13 6140 LIVESTOCK CLAIMS 1,000.00$                 3,935.75$                  4,000.00$               
4 6150 ANIMAL CONTROL 2,500.00$                 4,901.07$                  7,200.00$               

SUB TOTAL 3,500.00$              8,836.82$               11,200.00$          

STREET LIGHTS
6 3025 STREET LIGHTS LED 5,500.00$                 5,178.88$                  5,000.00$               
6 3026 STREET LIGHT REPAIR 1,000.00$                 -$                         1,000.00$               

SUB TOTAL 6,500.00$              5,178.88$               6,000.00$            

TOTAL PROTECTION TO PERSONS/PROPERTY 769,319.79$          767,036.00$           866,247.95$        



7

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023

SALARIES & ADMINISTRATION
1010 SALARIES AND WAGES 405,000.00$             382,530.18$              421,200.00$           
1025 RECEIVER GENERAL, EHT & WSIB 44,000.00$               43,236.95$                45,760.00$             
1020 BENEFITS 31,000.00$               24,256.40$                28,000.00$             
1065 OMERS TOWNSHIP CONTRIBUTION 36,500.00$               33,450.18$                37,960.00$             
1070 MILEAGE 100.00$                   12.00$                      100.00$                 
1022 STAFF TRAINING AND SEMINARS 3,000.00$                 213.70$                    3,000.00$               
2010 OFFICE SUPPLIES/COMPUTOR 2,000.00$                 1,711.85$                  2,000.00$               
2036 GPS MONTHLY TRACKING EXPENSE 5,500.00$                 4,308.66$                  5,500.00$               
2112 ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN SUPPORT 6,000.00$                 7,245.31$                  6,000.00$               
2112 ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 18,000.00$               12,720.00$                -$                      
3105 BRIDGE STUDY/INSPECTIONS -$                        16,300.00$             

TOTAL 551,100.00$          509,685.23$           565,820.00$        

ROAD DEPARTMENT BUILDING MISC.
2070 UTILITIES - HEAT 12,000.00$               15,166.91$                16,000.00$             
2080 UTILITIES - HYDRO 7,000.00$                 5,261.15$                  7,000.00$               
2090 TELEPHONE 1,000.00$                 1,102.48$                  1,200.00$               
2091 MOBILE PHONE 1,200.00$                 661.39$                    1,500.00$               
2040 ADVERTISING 750.00$                   529.15$                    750.00$                 
2041 SIGNS 5,000.00$                 4,565.66$                  6,000.00$               
2110 INSURANCE 57,400.00$               68,575.37$                70,000.00$             
2100 LEGAL FEES 5,000.00$                 18,132.31$                20,000.00$             
2050 AUDIT 10,000.00$               10,000.00$                10,000.00$             
2060 MEMBERSHIPS 150.00$                   131.00$                    150.00$                 
2165 MATERIALS AND SUPPLIES/STOCK 7,000.00$                 6,761.09$                  7,000.00$               
2166 COVERALLS 6,000.00$                 4,752.04$                  6,000.00$               
3000 SERVICES AND RENTS/MISC 7,500.00$                 -$                         7,500.00$               
2103 HEALTH & SAFETY SERVICES 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
2104 HEALTH & SAFETY SERVICES/SUPPLIES 500.00$                   127.20$                    1,000.00$               
2162 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 10,000.00$               14,420.04$                20,000.00$             
2163 SAND DOME REPAIRS -$                         
2170 COVID EXPENSES -$                        121.49$                    -$                      
2185 OIL SEPARATER 2,000.00$                 2,031.34$                  2,200.00$               
2192 SHOP TOOLS 5,000.00$                 933.13$                    5,000.00$               
2190 MISCELLANEOUS 2,000.00$                 1,737.23$                  2,000.00$               
3800 CONTRACT WORK 1,000.00$                 -$                         1,000.00$               

TOTAL 145,500.00$          160,008.98$           189,300.00$        



8

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023

ROAD EQUIPMENT
2150 FUEL - CLEAR 55,000.00$               64,678.72$                70,000.00$             
2155 FUEL - DYED 40,000.00$               61,264.34$                65,000.00$             
3060 WATER TANK -$                        

3070/3072 FUEL - PATROL TRUCKS 18,000.00$               15,300.81$                18,000.00$             
2180 OIL - TRUCKS AND GRADER 4,000.00$                 4,498.07$                  5,000.00$               
3071 TR # 1 - REPAIRS 5,000.00$                 5,158.03$                  5,000.00$               
3073 TR # 2 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               13,706.75$                15,000.00$             
3074 TR # 3 - REPAIRS 10,000.00$               8,791.38$                  15,000.00$             
3075 TR # 4 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               12,501.44$                15,000.00$             
3076 TR # 5 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               18,740.57$                15,000.00$             
3077 TR # 6 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               19,835.58$                15,000.00$             
3069 TR # 7 - REPAIRS 5,000.00$                 128.59$                    5,000.00$               
3079 GR#1 - CAT - REPAIRS 10,000.00$               23,807.20$                15,000.00$             
3080 GR#2 - REPAIRS 15,000.00$               5,238.51$                  15,000.00$             
3081 BACKHOE REPAIRS 3,000.00$                 1,842.92$                  3,000.00$               
3082 LOADER 2,500.00$                 402.03$                    2,500.00$               
3083 JOHN DEERE MOWER 1,000.00$                 438.25$                    1,000.00$               
3084 POWER WASHER 3,000.00$                 -$                         3,000.00$               
3085 CHAIN SAW 1,000.00$                 324.54$                    1,000.00$               
3086 ROADSIDE MOWER 1,000.00$                 1,205.51$                  2,000.00$               
3500 WINTER CONTROL-PLOW & WING PARTS 18,000.00$               34,885.00$                20,000.00$             
7015 JOHN DEERE GRADER LOAN 2,780.00$                 2,796.04$                  -$                      
2191 RADIO AND TRUCK LICENSES 10,000.00$               10,580.09$                12,000.00$             
2195 RADIO MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,500.00$                 -$                         2,500.00$               

TOTAL 266,780.00$          306,124.37$           320,000.00$        

NEW EQUIPMENT (CAPITAL)
7010 VEHICLES - TRUCK 128,349.13$             144,793.00$              -$                      
7005 EQUIPMENT (ACCUMULATOR) 15,000.00$               

GRADER 500,000.00$             610,000.00$           
TRUCK - 2 TONNE DUALLY PICK-UP 100,000.00$             100,000.00$           
PICK-UP EQUIPMENT 60,000.00$               60,000.00$             
TRACTOR WITH BLOWER BRUSHER 52,000.00$             
TOTAL 803,349.13$          144,793.00$           822,000.00$        



9

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023

BRIDGES, CULVERTS, DRAINS
3100 BRIDGE & CULVERT MTCE 20,000.00$               236.39$                    15,000.00$             

BRIDGE # 7 25,000.00$             
3111 BRIDGE # 11 304,500.00$             322,495.16$              -$                      
3115 BRIDGE # 13 -$                        3,371.45$                  -$                      
3116 BRIDGE  #004 - CLOSURE -$                        -$                         -$                      
3100 BRIDGE # 6 - CONTRUCTION - WATERPROOF/PAVE 20,000.00$               -$                         20,000.00$             
3112 BRIDGE # 2023 ENGINEERING DESIGN 18,000.00$               -$                         18,000.00$             
3850 DRAIN ASSESSMENTS NEW REPORTS -$                        -$                         -$                      
3851 ROAD CROSSINGS DUE TO DRAIN MTCE 55,000.00$               -$                         55,000.00$             
7021 CULVERT 2027 LOAN PAYMENT 40,908.00$               40,907.52$                40,907.00$             
3178 30 SIDEROAD CULVERT - EMERG. REPAIR -$                        -$                      
3156 CULVERT 2013 -$                        -$                      
3165 CULVERT 2021 -$                        -$                      

TOTAL 458,408.00$          367,010.52$           173,907.00$        

ROADSIDE
3215 GRASS MOWING & WEED SPRAYING 5,500.00$                 3,208.33$                  2,675.00$               
3205 BRUSHING - TREE TRIM AND REMOVAL 20,000.00$               4,261.20$                  -$                      
3206 DITCHING 30,000.00$               -$                         30,000.00$             
3322 CATCH BASINS 2,500.00$                 1,315.25$                  2,500.00$               
3610 GUIDE POSTS & HARDWARE 2,000.00$                 5,851.20$                  5,000.00$               
3315 SHOULDER MAINTENANCE 5,000.00$                 -$                         5,000.00$               

TOTAL 65,000.00$            14,635.98$             45,175.00$          

HARDTOP
3304 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE 18,000.00$               12,146.64$                20,000.00$             
3310 COLD MIX, PATCHING, ROUTINE MTCE 25,200.00$               2,200.00$                  6,000.00$               
3320 SWEEPING, FLUSHING, CLEANING 5,500.00$                 4,959.78$                  5,500.00$               
3321 LINE PAINTING 3,000.00$                 3,027.36$                  17,000.00$             

TOTAL 51,700.00$            22,333.78$             48,500.00$          

LOOSETOP
3700 CLEARVIEW TOWNLINE -$                        
3750 TOWNLINES 1,000.00$                 223.88$                    1,000.00$               
3200 ROADSIDE MAINTENANCE 1,000.00$                 -$                         1,000.00$               
3210 GRAVEL RESURFACING 335,000.00$             341,224.01$              400,000.00$           
3211 GRAVEL MAINTENANCE 25,000.00$               12,345.43$                30,000.00$             
3410 DUST LAYER (CALCIUM CHLORIDE) 165,000.00$             146,964.51$              170,000.00$           

TOTAL 527,000.00$          500,757.83$           602,000.00$        



10

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROADWAYS BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5005 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023

WINTER CONTROL
3510 SAND & SALT 40,000.00$               38,038.60$                55,000.00$             
3505 SNOW REMOVAL/BLOWING 1,225.00$                 3,537.62$                  -$                      

TOTAL 41,225.00$            41,576.22$             55,000.00$          

ROAD IMPROVEMENT
3130 2ND LINE SW - REHABILITATION 350,000.00$             478,508.25$              -$                      
3137 7TH LINE SW - REHABILITATION -$                        150,000.00$           
3134 RIVERVIEW PAVING -$                        250,000.00$           
3123 15 SR 3RD LINE TO CTY RD 124 -$                        250,000.00$           

3RD LINE FROM 20 SR 1.2 KM SOUTH 250,000.00$           
15 SR MAIN ST 1 KM EAST

3122 CHURCH STREET - CURB 24,796.49$                -$                      
TOTAL 350,000.00$          503,304.74$           900,000.00$        

RESERVE
5030 REPLACEMENT EQUIPMENT RESERVE 150,000.00$             150,000.00$              150,000.00$           

TOTAL 150,000.00$          150,000.00$           150,000.00$        

BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS
7041 WORKS BUILDING ROOF REPLACEMENT 119,568.00$             129,690.70$              -$                      

TOTAL 119,568.00$          129,690.70$           -$                     

TOTAL ROAD EXPENDITURES 3,529,630.13$       2,849,921.35$        3,871,702.00$     



11

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5007 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
2171 LEVELLING 7,500.00$                 -$                         7,500.00$               
2105 LANDFILL STUDY/MONITORING 16,000.00$               15,833.86$                16,317.22$             
2190 MISCELLANEIOUS 100.00$                   100.00$                 
7001 REHABILITATION RESERVE 10,000.00$               10,000.00$                10,000.00$             
7010 ENVIRONMENTAL/SUSTAINABILITY 5,000.00$                 167.90$                    5,000.00$               

TOTAL 38,600.00$            25,833.86$             38,917.22$          

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # RECREATION SERVICES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5010 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
5055 CORBETTON PARK 2,500.00$                 2,500.00$                  2,500.00$               
6060 HORNING'S MILLS PARK 2,500.00$                 5,471.90$                  5,500.00$               
6065 HORNING'S MILLS COMMUNITY HALL 12,000.00$               8,915.94$                  12,000.00$             
6064 HORNING'S MILLS HALL BLDNG NEEDS ASSESS -$                        
6066 HORNING'S MILLS HERITAGE PROJECT 500.00$                   313.47$                    500.00$                 
6070 CENTRE DUFFERIN RECREATION COMPLEX 63,550.00$               67,038.00$                47,773.00$             
6080 DUNDALK COMMUNITY CENTRE 14,000.00$               14,521.00$                15,500.00$             
6100 NORTH DUFFERIN COMMUNITY CENTRE 76,758.00$               74,643.37$                76,000.00$             

HERITAGE COMMITTEE 5,000.00$                 -$                         3,500.00$               
TOTAL 176,808.00$          173,403.68$           163,273.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # CEMETARY BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5016 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
8902 HORNING'S MILLS CEMETERY 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
8904 ST. PAUL'S CEMETERY

TOTAL 5,000.00$              5,000.00$               5,000.00$            

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # LIBRARY BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5011 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
6110 SHELBURNE LIBRARY 58,500.00$               58,711.00$                61,000.00$             
6120 DUNDALK LIBRARY 8,600.00$                 8,732.00$                  9,000.00$               

TOTAL 67,100.00$            67,443.00$             70,000.00$          



12

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # PLANNING SERVICES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5012 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
2100 PROFESSIONAL/LEGAL FEES 50,000.00$               55,802.78$                60,000.00$             
2018 OFFICIAL PLAN 30,000.00$             
2109 NEW ZONING BY-LAW -$                        45,000.00$             
2101 LPAT/OLT APPEALS 15,000.00$               -$                         -$                      
2102 LPAT/OLT APPEALS RESERVES 15,000.00$               15,000.00$                15,000.00$             
2304 STRADA OPA/ZBA -$                        

TOTAL 80,000.00$            70,802.78$             150,000.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # DRAINAGE BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5009 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
3060 DRAINAGE SUPERINTENDENT 50,880.00$               28,218.60$                50,000.00$             
3070 NUISANCE BEAVER & BEAVER DAM REMOVAL 4,500.00$                 4,426.18$                  5,000.00$               

TOTAL 55,380.00$            32,644.78$             55,000.00$          

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # RESERVES BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

5002 EXPENDITURES AS AT FEB 16, 2023
COVID - SAFE RESTART 28,000.00$               28,000.00$                -$                      

5042 SPECIAL RESERVE FUND EMERGENCY RELIEF 5,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
TOTAL 33,000.00$            33,000.00$             5,000.00$            

TOTAL
EXPENITURER 5,592,691.92$       4,765,001.77$        6,098,052.17$     



13

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # TAXATION BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
4001 0700 SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES 85,000.00$               83,072.57$                85,000.00$             
4003 0100 PAYMENT IN LIEU 1,900.00$                 1,946.42$                  1,950.00$               

TOTAL TAXATION REVENUE 86,900.00$            85,018.99$             86,950.00$          

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # GRANT BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4004 REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
150 OMPF 176,500.00$             176,500.00$              175,300.00$           
300 RIDE GRANT 6,600.00$                 6,524.00$                  6,600.00$               
172 COURT SECURITY & PRISONER TRANSPORT 1,500.00$                 730.00$                    730.00$                 
500 LIBRARY GRANT 4,452.00$                 4,452.00$                  4,452.00$               
156 OCIF FUNDING (FORMULA COMPONENT) 108,537.00$             108,537.00$              100,000.00$           
159 SAFE RESTART AGREEMENT (COVID) -$                        
700 ONTARIO AGGREGATE LIC. FEE 100,000.00$             118,882.38$              110,000.00$           
100 DRAINAGE SUPERINTENDENT 25,440.00$               14,109.30$                25,000.00$             
164 ICIP GRANT (ROADS BLDG ROOF) 92,000.00$               92,000.00$                -$                      

TOTAL COUNCIL REVENUE 515,029.00$          521,734.68$           422,082.00$        

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ADMINISTRATION BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4010 REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
100 TAX CERTIFICATES 3,000.00$                 2,640.00$                  2,500.00$               
110 TAX STATEMENT/DUPLICATE TAX BILLS 500.00$                   535.00$                    500.00$                 
115 REMINDER/OVERDUE NOTICE FEE 3,000.00$                 3,034.00$                  3,000.00$               
200 BUILDING PERMIT APPROVAL 4,800.00$                 6,600.00$                  5,000.00$               
250 SITE ALTERATION PERMIT APPROVAL -$                        -$                      
300 NSF CHEQUE CHARGE 50.00$                     -$                         100.00$                 
400 PHOTOCOPIES -$                        -$                      

4015 0100 DOG LICENCES 12,000.00$               10,825.00$                10,000.00$             
4066 0000 LOTTERY LICENSES 20.00$                     -$                         20.00$                   
4040 0100 LIVESTOCK CLAIM GRANTS 30.00$                     3,935.00$                  4,000.00$               
4064 0000 BUSINESS LICENSES 250.00$                   -$                         250.00$                 

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION REVENUE 23,650.00$            27,569.00$             25,370.00$          



14

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # FIRE BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4012 REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
100 FIRE REVENUE 500.00$                   1,534.00$                  1,500.00$               
300 FIRE PERMIT 3,600.00$                 3,585.00$                  3,500.00$               

TOTAL FIRE REVENUE 4,100.00$              5,119.00$               5,000.00$            

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # ROAD BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4020 REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
110 ROADS MISC REVENUE 1,000.00$                 11,620.00$                5,000.00$               
125 ENTRANCE PERMITS 1,200.00$                 5,200.00$                  2,000.00$               
130 WIDE LOAD PERMITS 1,320.00$                 1,200.00$                  1,200.00$               
200 CULVERTS -$                        
140 BRETTON ESTATES SNOW PLOWING 900.00$                   -$                         
500 SHELBURNE ROAD AGREEMENT 5,660.00$                 6,026.00$                  6,442.35$               

TRANSFER FROM RESERVES
703 TRFR FROM GAS TAX 204,500.00$             204,500.00$              135,000.00$           
704 TRFR FROM ROAD CAPITAL RESERVE 200,000.00$           
702 TRFR FROM EQUIPMENT RESERVE - TRUCK 628,350.00$             144,793.00$              595,000.00$           

0 TRFR FROM WORKING CAPITAL RESERVE 250,000.00$             274,797.00$              109,000.00$           
TRFR FROM PAVING RESERVE 74,000.00$             
TRFR DEV CHG (GRADER) 175,000.00$           
TRFR DEV CHG (PAVING) 52,000.00$             
TAX STABILIZATION 161,504.00$              
TOTAL ROADS REVENUE 1,092,930.00$       809,640.00$           1,354,642.35$     

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # PLANNING BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4035 REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
100 OFFICIAL PLAN APPLICATION -$                        -$                      
310 SITE PLAN APPLICATION FEES -$                        -$                      
350 ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENT 10,000.00$               3,500.00$                  6,000.00$               
300 CONSENT APPLICATIONS 7,000.00$                 7,000.00$                  6,000.00$               
325 MINOR VARIANCE 1,000.00$                 5,000.00$                  5,000.00$               
200 ZONING REQUESTS 1,700.00$                 750.00$                    1,000.00$               
360 CHANGE OF USE CERTIFICATE APPLICATION -$                        1,500.00$                  2,500.00$               
370 TELECOMMUNICATION FACILITES APPLICATION -$                        -$                      
375 PRE-APPLICATION CONSULTATION -$                        7,000.00$                  12,000.00$             
500 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REIMBURSEMENT -$                        -$                      

TRFR FROM DEV CHG (OFFICIAL PLAN) 21,000.00$             
TOTAL PLANNING REVENUE 19,700.00$            24,750.00$             53,500.00$          



15

GL 2022 2022 2023
ACCT # OTHER BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET

4050 REVENUE AS AT FEB 16, 2023
100 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 500.00$                   927.00$                    600.00$                 
125 CHD COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 309,000.00$             309,000.00$              309,000.00$           
130 PLATEAU COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 33,000.00$               34,673.00$                35,000.00$             
135 DWP COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION 265,000.00$             264,000.00$              264,000.00$           
200 PENALTIES AND INTEREST ON TAXES 95,000.00$               105,954.00$              100,000.00$           
300 INTEREST ON DEPOSITS 11,000.00$               36,155.00$                45,000.00$             
400 POA 6,000.00$                 40,788.20$                45,000.00$             

4077 0000 LAND RENTAL 2,550.00$                 2,550.00$                  2,550.00$               
4050 0460 TRFR FROM MMAH-2019 FOR COUNCIL HYBRID 5,500.00$                 5,500.00$                  5,000.00$               
4050 0460 TRFR FROM COVID FUNDING 28,000.00$               28,000.00$                -$                      

4050 0460 TRFR FROM TAX STABALIZATION (LEGALS OVERAGE) 15,000.00$               161,503.00$              40,000.00$             
-$                         

TOTAL  OTHER REVENUE 770,550.00$          989,050.20$           846,150.00$        

TOTAL REVENUE 2,512,859.00$       2,462,881.87$        2,793,694.35$     

TOTAL EXPENDITURER 5,592,691.92$       4,765,001.77$        6,098,052.17$     

3,079,832.92$       2,302,119.90$        3,304,357.82$     
INCREASE 7.29%



Obigatory Reserve Funds
Unaudited

2021 Transfer to Transfers from Interest 2022 Transfer to Transfers from Interest 2022
Closing Reserve Funds Reserve Funds Income Closing Reserve Funds Reserve Funds Income Closing 

Subdivider Cont - Park Levies 21,000.00$             21,000.00$            21,000.00$                        
Parkland Reserve Fund 27,234.41$             482.14             27,716.55$            27,716.55$                        
Development Charges Reserve Fund 875,967.96$          118,844.25             16,702.37       1,011,514.58$      248,000.00         763,514.58$                      
Cdn Community Building Reserve Fund (CCBF) 141,654.97$          98,000.00                204,500.00          2,782.49         37,937.46$            99,546.97          135,000.00         2,484.43$                           

Total 1,065,857.34$       216,844.25             204,500.00          1,098,168.59$      99,546.97         383,000.00         814,715.56$                      

Discretionary Reserves/ Reserve Funds
Unaudited

2021 Closing Transfer to Transfers from Interest 2022 Closing Transfer to Transfers from Interest
2022 Opening Reserve Funds Reserve Funds Income 2023 Opening Reserve Funds Reserve Funds Income 2023 Closing

Building Maintenance 20,059.48$             10,000.00$             355.12$          30,414.60$            10,000.00$       40,414.60$                        
Bridge Reserve Fund -$                         -$                        -$                                     
Insurance Reserve Fund 21,725.79$             384.62$          22,110.41$            22,110.41$                        
Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund 493,176.88$          150,000.00$           144,793.00$        11,810.00$     510,193.88$          150,000.00$     595,000.00$       65,193.88$                        
Roads Capital Reserve Fund 201,467.67$          3,566.63$       205,034.30$          200,000.00$       5,034.30$                           
Tax Rate Stabilization Reserve Fund 327,099.02$          161,503.41$        5,790.75$       171,386.36$          40,000.00$         131,386.36$                      
Landfill Rehabilitation Reserve Fund 138,673.62$          2,454.98$       141,128.60$          141,128.60$                      
Recreation Capital Reserve Fund 10,629.50$             188.17$          10,817.67$            10,817.67$                        
Quarry Reserve Fund 116,658.44$          2,065.24$       118,723.68$          118,723.68$                      
Special Reserve Fund Emergency Relief 25,502.84$             -$                          451.49$          25,954.33$            5,000.00$          30,954.33$                        
Paving Capital Reserve 74,155.09$             5,000.00$                n/a 79,155.09$            74,000.00$         n/a 5,155.09$                           
Road Construction Capital 1,942.36$               n/a 1,942.36$              n/a 1,942.36$                           
Corbetton Park Reserve 13,537.40$             n/a 13,537.40$            n/a 13,537.40$                        
Working Capital Reserve 1,210,099.14$       274,796.49$        n/a 935,302.65$          114,000.00$       n/a 821,302.65$                      
PSAB 1,537.40$               n/a 1,537.40$              n/a 1,537.40$                           
LPAT (new 2022) 15,000.00$             n/a 15,000.00$            15,000.00$       m/a 30,000.00$                        
Total 2,656,264.63$       180,000.00$           581,092.90$        2,282,238.73$      180,000.00$     1,023,000.00$   1,439,238.73$                   



Category % Balance Transfer (budget) (2021) DC Fees Collected Interest Balance
Administration - Engineering & Protection Services 7.47% 81,553.21$            8,877.67$                 1,247.67$             91,678.54$             
Administration - Community Based Services 14.51% 50,488.82$            17,244.30$               2,423.51$             70,156.64$             
Transportation 27.53% 359,628.50$          (39,000.00)$                         32,717.82$               4,598.16$             357,944.48$          
Fire 15.69% 116,654.84$          18,646.66$               2,620.60$             137,922.10$          
Indoor Recreation 31.32% 278,438.01$          37,222.02$               5,231.18$             320,891.22$          
Outdoor Recreation 0.81% 2,818.45$              962.64$                    135.29$                3,916.37$               
Library 2.50% 22,144.87$            2,971.11$                 417.56$                25,533.54$             
Police 0.17% 9,491.84$              (6,250.60)$                           202.04$                    28.39$                  3,471.67$               
Total 921,218.55$          (45,250.60)$                         118,844.25$            16,702.37$          1,011,514.57$       

The Municipality is compliant with s.s. 59.1 (1) of the Development Charges Act, whereby charges are not directly or indirectly imposed on development nor has a 
requirement to construct a service related to development been imposed, except as permitted by the Development Charges Act or another Act.

TOWNSHIP OF MELANCTHON
2022 Statement of Development Charge Reserve Funds



Actual

Equipment 610,000.00$      Grader Equip Reserve/DC's (175,000) 175,000.00$                        
100,000.00$      2 tonne pick up Equip Reserve

60,000.00$        Pick-up equipment Equip Reserve 595,000.00$                        
Total Equipment 770,000.00$      

Total Road Projects 150,000.00$      7th Line Rehab $52,000 DC's
250,000.00$      Riverview Sub. $135,000 Gas Tax
250,000.00$      15 SR to Cty 124 $200,000 Roads Capital 387,000.00$                        
250,000.00$      3rd Line

Total 900,000.00$      Total from Reserves $ 1,157,000.00$                    

Equip & Road Proj- tax base 513,000.00$                        
Bridge 15,000.00$        

25,000.00$        Bridge 7 All bridge projects coming from Tax base
20,000.00$        Bridge 6 From Tax base 78,000.00$                          
18,000.00$        Bridge 2023

Total Bridge 63,000.00$        
Total from Reserves 1,157,000.00$                    
Total from Tax Base 591,000.00$                        

Total Capital 1,733,000.00$   $1,748,000

2023 Capital Expenditures



2022 2023

Commercial 10,719,000      11,333,700           
Farmland 251,367,400    249,747,300        
Industrial 39,079,500      41,051,100           

Manag Forests 3,252,500        2,770,000             
Pipeline 1,939,000        1,942,000             

Residential 431,872,000    444,598,100        

Taxable 738,229,400    751,442,200        
 

Grand Total CVA 738,229,400    751,442,200        

change 13,212,800           
% change 1.79%

Year 2020 reflects 2016 Assessed Values;
changes in 2022 and 2023 are from new builds & renovations

Broad Tax Class



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023GB #16.3.3

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text

kchessell
Typewritten Text



kchessell
Typewritten Text
FEB 16 2023DEL #17.1

kchessell
Typewritten Text


































	Council Agenda - Feb 16 2023
	Council Minutes ~ Feb 2 2023
	PLAN  #11.1 ~ Applications to Permit
	PLAN #11.2 ~ Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority 2023 Plan Review of Bill 23
	PLAN #11.3 ~ Report from Silva Yousif, Senior Planner Regarding Dufferin County MCR – Phase II OPA – Schedule B, C and E
	Dufferin County MCR  Phase II OPA  - Melancthon
	Schedule E1 - NHS_EC_Jan192023_Feb62023_Published_Melancthon

	PLAN #11.4 ~ Comments from Chris Jones, Municipal Planning Services regarding County of Dufferin Ag. Lands Mapping
	BD COMM REC #1 ~ Heritage Advisory Committee Recommendations from February 7, 2023 Meeting
	BD COMM MINS #1 ~ Roads Sub-Committee – January 17, 2023
	BD COMM MINS #2 ~ Mulmur-Melancthon Fire Board – December 20, 2022
	BD COMM MINS #3 ~ Southgate Recreation Advisory Committee – February 2, 2023
	BD COMM MINS #4 ~ Heritage Advisory Committee – October 19, 2022
	INFO #1 ~ Nottawasaga Valley Conservation Authority Media Release – Gail Little to lead NVCA Board of Directors in 2023
	INFO #2 ~ Memorandum from Bernie Derible, Deputy Minister and Commissioner of Emergency Management and Treasury Board Secretariat regarding Ontario’s Provincial Emergency Management Strategy and Action Plan (PEMSAP)
	INFO #3 ~ Township of Mulmur – Motion to support the concept of a Universal Telecommunications System in Dufferin County
	INFO #4 ~ Letter from Glen McNeil, Warden of Huron County – Call to Action Review of the Cannabis Act
	County of Huron - Council Report - Cannabis Act Information.pdf
	Cannabis Act Report
	Background
	Cannabis Act: Information For Municipalities 
	1. Licensed Producers
	2. Personal and Designated Production 

	Community Expressed Concerns
	Impact to the Municipality
	Advocacy Efforts to Date
	Recommendations for Further Advocacy
	Call to Action Letter
	Report for Council: Cannabis Act Information (this report)

	Further Resources
	The Cannabis Act: The Facts
	The Cannabis Act
	Cannabis Information for Municipalities
	Ontario: Cannabis Control Act

	Correspondence Received by Council
	Correspondence to Council, January 2023: Bonnie Shackelton

	Appendix A
	Appendix B


	HC_Council_CannabisReview_October 5 2022
	HC_Council_CannabisAct_January 2023


	INFO #5 ~ Township of Amaranth – Motion to Support the Resolution from the Township of Puslinch Nominating John Sepulis to the Source Protection Committee for 2022-2026 term
	INFO #6 ~ 2022 Municipal Partnerships Report from MPAC
	Cover
	Contents
	2022: Partnering Today for a New Tomorrow
	Who We Are
	Capturing New Assessment
	Connecting With Partners
	Property Insights
	Innovative Solutions
	Delivering the 2022 Enumeration
	Prioritizing Property Owners
	New Products and Services on the Horizon
	Looking Ahead
	Connect With Us

	ACT #1 ~ Shelburne and District Fire Board of Management 2023 Operating and Capital Budget
	ACT #2 ~ Mulmur Melancthon Fire Department 2023 Operating and Capital Budget
	ACT #3 ~ North Dufferin Community Centre Board of Management Draft 2023 Operating and Capital Budget
	GB #16.1.1 ~ By-law to adopt an Emergency Management Program and Emergency Response Plan and to meet other Requirements under the Emergency Management and Civil Protection Act
	GB #16.1.2 ~ By-law to Authorize the Execution of Consent Agreement Between 2577791 Ontario Inc and the Corporation of the Township of Melancthon
	GB #16.1.3 ~ By-law to amend By-law 58-2022 to appoint a Municipal Services Board for the Horning’s Mills Community Hall
	GB #16.1.4 ~ By-law to amend By-law 56-2022 to appoint a Board of Management for the Corbetton Community Park
	GB #16.1.5 ~ By-law to establish Mandatory Pre-Application Consultation Requirements in Respect of Development Applications
	GB #16.2.1 ~ Report from Denise B. Holmes, CAOClerk – Municipal Telecommunications Report
	Memo Municipal Telecommunications Report
	Telecommunications Report - CPS-2022-062
	Orangeville - Orangeville Council Meeting - August 8 2022 - D03 - Final

	GB #16.3.1 ~Melancthon Recreation Task Force Report
	GB #16.3.2 ~ Draft 2023 Operating and Capital Budget
	Draft Budget Report February 16, 2023
	2023 Salary Report
	2023 Budget DRAFT AS AT FEB 16th
	Reserve Chart 2022-2023
	Development Chart Chart 2022
	Capital Expenditures
	Growth 2021-2022

	GB #16.3.3 ~ International Plowing Match Funding Request
	DEL 17.1 ~ 530 p.m. – Michele Fisher, Dufferin Community Foundation – Presentation to Council about the Importance of the Charitable and Not-for-Profit Sector in Dufferin County and regarding Non-profit Appreciation Week



